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Management Discussion and Analysis

ERERLR AW

MARKET REVIEW

Being the third year of the COVID-19 pandemic, year 2022 has been filled
with challenges including the drastic surge of Omicron variant inflection
cases all over the world, as well as the geopolitical tension resulted from the
Russia-Ukraine War. Almost no industry was unaffected by the pandemic.
Although certain major economies show a recovery momentum consequent
to a widespread vaccination coverage and community immunity, the
high inflection rate still hinder international travel. As nations around the
globe later opened their borders, People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
continued to uphold some of the world’s most stringent quarantine and
travel requirements through 2022 under its zero-COVID policy. Since the
continuous upgrade of the highly infectious pandemic has led to a “home-
based” economy with substantial travel restrictions and lockdowns across
the PRC, the performance of our hotels in PRC was still facing severe

disruption and demand remained subdued.

In face of rising domestic constraints and uncertain global recovery, the
PRC targeted a slower economic growth at the fifth session of the 13th
National People’s Congress held at March 2022 and has set stability as its
top priority for economic achievement for the year. Judging from that, the
execution of these policies went well and the PRC continues to remain as
the key growth driver of the world during the year with effective epidemic
prevention mechanism, the complete production chain and rising domestic
demand and has successfully avoided the adverse impact of newer waves of
Omicron infection. The gross domestic product (“GDP"”) of PRC increased
by approximately 3.0% as compared to year-on-year in 2021, with an
average growth rate of approximately 5.6% in the past two years. In the
meanwhile, there were approximately 116 million of people entered/exited
through the immigration clearance in the PRC during the year ended 31
December 2022, which represented a decrease of approximately 9.4% as

compared to year-on-year of 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s business and
financial performance had been continuedly impacted by the COVID-19
pandemic with the extended lockdown of Guangzhou at the first and
the fourth quarters of 2022, revenue of the Group attained HK$53.2
million, representing an decrease of 32.7% as compared to HK$79.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2021. The results of the Group
for year ended 31 December 2022 was a loss of HK$25.4 million (2021:
HK$38.3 million) which was mainly attributable to administrative and
other operating expenses of HK$51.9 million (2021: HK$84.7 million);
distribution and selling expenses of HK$0.2 million (2021: HK$0.3 million);
finance costs of HK$3.4 million (2021: HK$3.4 million); loss on fair value
changes of investment properties of HK$22.0 million (2021: HK$33.5
million) and income tax credit of HK$5.6 million (2021: income tax expense
of HK$22,000); partially offset by gross profit of HK$26.8 million (2021:
HK$40.4 million); gain on disposal of subsidiaries of HK$nil (2021: HK$15.0
million); other income, gains and losses, net of HK$21.2 million (2021:
HK$28.2 million).

The performance of the Group’s hotel operations and securities trading
during the year ended 31 December 2022 under review, the commentary
on the hotel sector and the changes in general market conditions and the
potential impact on their operating performance and future prospects are
contained in the succeeding sections headed “BUSINESS REVIEW” and
“PROSPECTS".

BEE WL DA

L pr )L

RBEE-_E-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE
BE T _FE—FERENFEEMND
HWMKELER  AEEEBERMBERRR
COVID-1ORNRITHIFFE R E - REE Z WA
#%53,200,0008 7T - REEZE-_E-—F+=A
=+—HBLFE79,100,00078 7L 2 32.7% °
AEEBE-T-_—_F+-A=+—HLFE
2 HEAESRS51825,400,000/8 0( — T = —F ¢
38,300,00077T) + £ ERE1THE R E 4L & F
51,900,000/ 70 ( —Z = —4 : 84,700,000/
JC) ¢ $E R E #32200,0008 T (ZE = —
£ : 300,000/ 7T ) ¢ BLE K 753,400,000 % 7T
(== =—% : 3,400,000/ 7T) : HEWEZ R
FEE# R E51822,000,0008 T (=ZF = —
£ : 33,500,000 7T ) & AT 5 B 4K 4 5,600,000
BT ZE=—F : F{8HiF22,000/7T)
=0  #% 26,800,000/ 7 ( =T = — 4 :
40,400,000/ 7T) : HEMEBATRFZT AT
—Z = —4 15,000,000/ 7T) : EMULA -
U %5 K 518 5 %821,200,0008 0 (=2 = —F :
28,200,000/ 7T ) AT 84 ©

AREFRHEE T - —_F+_-_A=+—HI1t@
BFEZEEEXBRBLFERECRE « ¥BE
TEZTRREETSERE A REHLE
REZBEFERAREE - SN TX ¥4
BIREZIEH -

BERZHERRERAT

2022F %,



Management Discussion and Analysis
BN 7

BUSINESS REVIEW

(a)

(b)

Hotel Operations

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the hotel operations
comprise the operations of two “Rosedale” branded 4-star rated
hotels located in Guangzhou and Shenyang. Under the aforesaid
challenging operating environment in the year under review, overall
revenue generated from hotel operations decreased by 32.7%
to HK$36.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 (Year
ended 31 December 2021: HK$53.8 million). The combined average
occupancy rate of the Group increased by 1.10% to 25.5% for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (Year ended 31 December 2021:
24.4%). The gross margin of hotel operations was maintained at
50.4%. To combat the competitive environment, the Group will
continue to invest resources to enhancing its market network and
positioning and, in the meantime, will further streamline its business

operations to contain costs efficiently.

Securities Trading

The segment recorded a profit of HK$nil for the year ended 31
December 2022 (Year ended 31 December 2021: segment profit of
HK$0.1 million), mainly representing fair value gain of investments
held for trading, as a result of mark to market valuations as at the

balance sheet date.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The COVID-19 pandemic has impacted and will continue to impact
materially our business, financial condition and results of operations.
While we believe strong liquidity position will enable us to fund our
current obligations for the foreseeable future. As at 31 December 2022,
the Group's cash and bank balances and investments held for trading
amounted to HK$1,702.8 million (31 December 2021: HK$1,782.7 million).
The Group has interest-bearing borrowings amounted to HK$22.0 million
(31 December 2021: HK$22.0 million).

The Group's current assets and current liabilities as at 31 December 2022
were HK$1,743.6 million and HK$50.7 million (31 December 2021:
HK$1,853.6 million and HK$88.3 million), respectively. As a result, the
current ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2022 was 34.4 (31 December
2021: 21.0). The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2022, expressed as a
percentage of total borrowings to equity attributable to owners of the
Company, was 1.3% (31 December 2021: 1.2%).

CHARGE OF ASSETS

The borrowing (current liabilities) was secured by the Group’s interest over
certain subsidiaries as at each of 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2021.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at each of
31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWwALR 2T

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities and business transactions
were denominated in Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi. During the year
ended 31 December 2022, the Group has not entered into any hedging
arrangements. However, the Group will actively consider the use of relevant
financial instruments to manage currency exchange risks in line with our

business development.

INTEREST RATE EXPOSURE

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group was not subject to
the risk of significant interest rate volatility. The Company will continue to
monitor the interest rate markets and actively consider the application of

relevant financial instruments to manage risks associated with interest rates.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

At 31 December 2022, the Group had 334 employees of which 326
employees were stationed in the PRC. Employees’ remuneration packages
were determined in accordance with individual’s responsibility, competence
and skills, qualifications, experience and performance as well as market
pay-level. Staff benefits include training programs, provident fund scheme,

medical insurance and other competitive fringe benefits.

In face of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has implemented certain
protocols to protect our employees. These measures include: (i) remote
working arrangements and flexible working hours; (ii) restrictions on access
to the offices and temperature screening; (iii) meeting are held by video
conference or conference call if possible; (iv) self-isolation with in cases of
developing symptoms or close contact with suspected cases of COVID-19;

and (v) granting of paid on necessary vaccination leave.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECTS

After an extremely difficult year in 2022, the business environment
continues to be challenging as we head into 2023. At the time of writing,
with the significant relaxation of domestic epidemic prevention policies
by the PRC government, the management believes that with the gradual
loosening of international travel and quarantine requirements world-
wide, as well as growing demand for traveling from both corporate and
leisure ends in an orderly manner in the coming future, which is becoming
more positive for the Group’s core business. On the hope that there is no
further outbreak from evolution of new virus variants; other than those, it is

important to note that the Russia-Ukraine War remains ongoing.

With an aim of strengthening the competitiveness, new procedures,
standards and processes, either temporary or long term have been newly set
at our hotels, and we are moving forward towards a “new normal”, with
unprecedented health and safety measures in place. Our central mission
is restoring consumers’ confidence, and endeavoring to expand customer
base, which must be to give every guest of our hotels the confidence and
reassurance that they are safe when they stay with us. At the same time,
the Group is taking strict precautionary measures to ensure the health
and safety of our employees as well as supporting the steps taken by the

government.

In the near term, it is anticipated that both opportunities and challenges
ahead, the Group will adopt a prudent approach in the course of
its business development. Besides seeking high-quality investment
opportunities, will also seize the market low and continue to look for
suitable acquisition opportunities including but not limited to mid-scale
hotels or chains in particular the Greater Bay Area, in order to enhance the

return of the Group and our shareholders as a whole.
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Directors’ Profile

B[00

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tam Chung Sun, aged 60, has been the Chairman of the Company
since October 2020. Mr. Tam owns a number of companies in Mainland
China and has over 30 years of experience in real estate development, hotel
operations and development of large-scale commercial projects. He also
has extensive management experience in various types of business activities
in Mainland China, including trading, finance and catering. Mr. Tam
graduated from the Program of Doctor in Management Philosophy at the
Department of Philosophy, Sun Yat-sen University, Guangzhou in 2011. In
July 2011, Mr. Tam was awarded the Chief Executive’s Commendation for
Community Service by the then Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region in recognition of Mr. Tam’s meritorious community
service, particularly his contribution in striving for the rights of Hong Kong

owners of mainland properties.

Dr. Ho Chuk Man, James, aged 59, has been an executive director of
the Company since April 2022. He is also the chairman of the corporate
governance committee, a member of the nomination committee and the
remuneration committee of the Company. He graduated from the Victoria
University of Switzerland with a PhD in Business Administration in 2009. He
received a Master Degree in Business Administration from the University of
Northern Virginia in 2006 and a Doctor’s Degree in Business Administration
from Warnborough College-UK in 2007, an EMBA degree from the School
of Continuing Education at Tsinghua University in Beijing and an EMBA

degree from Peking University.

Dr. Ho has more than 30 years senior management experience in various
industries and listed companies including hotel management, natural gas
exploration, tourism, catering, technology development and real estates

development.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Dr. Ho has been:

D)

Vice Chairman of Beijing Longquan Hotel (1999-2002);

Managing Director for the Beijing Yijingyuan real estate development
project* of Beijing Chengrong Real Estate Development Company
Limited* (1999-2002);

Director and Deputy General Manager of Aviation Industry
Corporation of China (2001-2002);

Chief Executive Officer of Hong Kong Wing On Travel Services Limited
(2002);

Chief Executive Officer of Dong Fang Gas Holdings Limited (2002—
2005);

Legal Representative of Harbin Singapore Hotel (2002-2007);

Executive Director of SHS Holdings Limited (2003-2005);

Executive Director of HLH Group Limited (2003-2006);

Vice Chairman of Qitaihe Xunda Gas Co., Ltd.*

(2003-2005);

Legal Representative of Luoyang Golden Gulf Hotel (2004-2020);

Managing Director of Henan Zhongtian Beidou Satellite Application

Industry Development Co., Ltd.* (2017-2018); and

Co-CEO and Executive President of Henan Military Industry Aerospace
Science and Technology Development Co. Ltd.* (2017-2021).

Dr. Ho is currently the Chairman and Associate Director of China Police

Network Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd.* and the Chairman of the board of

supervisors of Tiancheng Jiafu Energy Technology Co. Ltd.*.
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Directors’ Profile

B[00

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Lu Zhiming, aged 57, has been an executive director of the Company
since November 2022. He joined the Group on 20 July 2022 and acted
as the chairman of the board of Rosedale Hotel Shenyang Company
Limited, one of the subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Lu has over 30 years of
senior management experience in various industries, including marketing
management, tourism, catering, hotel management and hotel business
development of well-known state-owned enterprises in the PRC. Mr. Lu
has been a local marketing director of Guang Zhou Wanbao Group Co.,
Ltd. during the period from September 1982 to July 1999. During his
tenure, he was mainly responsible for asset management, including the
transformation of factory buildings and hotels. Mr. Lu has been a deputy
general manager of Guangxi Lijiang Digital International Travel Agency
Co., Ltd. from March 2000 until 2021. During his tenure, he was mainly
responsible for formulating the establishment of tourism resources in the
province, maintaining the strategic strategy of self-owned and third-party

hotels, operating self-owned hotels and developing the hotel business.

Mr. Tsang Ming To, aged 45, has been an executive director of the
Company since October 2022. Mr. Tsang obtained a degree of Bachelor
of Business Administration (Honors) in Business Administration from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1999. He has been the Deputy General
Manager of Clement Shield Group from February 2020 to August 2021.
During his tenure, he was mainly responsible to establish and maintain
information networks and relationships globally with relevant government,
intelligence, law enforcement and security contacts, as well as corporate
and third-party resources, to inform both changing strategy requirements
and immediate operational risks and manage the allocated budgets and

financial resources effectively and efficiently.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Zeng Guang, aged 28, has been an independent non-executive
Director of the Company since April 2022. He is also the chairman of the
remuneration committee, and a member of the audit committee, the
nomination committee and the corporate governance committee of the
Company. He graduated from Xinyang Agriculture and Forestry University
as Bachelor of Agriculture in 2018. Mr. Chen has been the Regional
General Manager of Zhengzhou Zhoumo Catering Services Co. Ltd.* in the
Zhengzhou region during the period from December 2018 to September
2020. During his tenure, he was mainly responsible for the daily operation
and management of all local restaurants in the region, as well as planning
and developing new restaurants. Since November 2020 and up to present,
Mr. Chen is the Deputy General Manager of Guangzhou Jinxin Property
Management Co., Ltd.* and is mainly responsible for property development

projects and operation management.

Directors’ Profile
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Directors’ Profile

B[00

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Mr. Tong Wing Chi, aged 41, has been an independent non-executive
Director of the Company since September 2022. He is also the chairman of
the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee, and a member of
the Remuneration Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee
of the Company. He obtained a degree of Bachelor of Arts (Honors) in
Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November
2004 and has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since September 2008. Mr. Tong has over 15 years of
experience in auditing, accounting and financial reporting. Mr. Tong started
his career in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from September 2004 to February
2010 with his last position as an audit senior. He then worked in DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung as a senior accountant from March 2010 to October
2011. Mr. Tong returned to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in October 2011 as
an audit manager and his last held position was a manager of CXO advisory
service when he left the company in February 2014. Mr. Tong has been a
managing director of Victory Success Consulting Limited since July 2018
and a managing partner of Edward and Stan Global Advisory Limited since
November 2019. Mr. Tong is an independent non-executive director of PF
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8221, a company listed on GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) since 6 October 2021 and an
independent non-executive director of CHTC Fong's International Company
Limited (stock code: 641, a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) since 1 March 2022. Mr. Tong had been
an independent non-executive director of Trendzon Holdings Group Limited
(stock code: 1865, a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) for the period from 21 September 2020
to 31 March 2022.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2022
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Mr. Wan Kwun Lun, aged 34, has been an independent non-executive
Director of the Company since October 2022. He is also a member of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee of the Company. He
obtained a degree of Bachelor of Arts (Honors) in Physical Education and
Recreation Management from The Hong Kong Baptist University in 2013.
Mr. Wan has over 8 years of experience in financing and asset
management. Mr. Wan worked in KGI Securities (HK) Limited from October
2014 to November 2015 as a vice president. He then worked in Finet
Holdings Limited as a financial analyst from October 2015 to June 2017
and Wilson International Finance Holding Limited as a director from June
2017 to February 2020. Mr. Wan has been a director of Credit Prestige
International Education Consulting Limited since April 2018 and a President
of Asset Management of China Zhong Heng Finance Group Limited since
March 2020

*  For identification purpose only
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Senior Management'’s Profile
SREEASEN

Mr. Lau Ka Kit, Ken, aged 51, has been the Financial Controller of the
Company since April 2015 and is also a director of various subsidiaries of
the Company. He has over 20 years of progressive accounting experience
through management roles for a variety of public and private multinational
corporations. Mr. Lau is a member of CPA Australia and a certificate holder

of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Yuen Wai Keung, aged 42, was appointed as the company secretary
of the Company on 7 June 2023. He holds a bachelor degree of business
administration, a master degree of corporate governance and is an associate
of the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr. Yuen has extensive experience in
corporate compliance. Mr. Yuen is currently a managing director of a

corporate professional service firm in Hong Kong.
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Corporate Governance Report

INTRODUCTION

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED (“Company”)
is committed to maintaining good corporate governance practices which
are crucial to the development of the Company and can safeguard the
interests of its shareholders (“Shareholders”). The board of directors of
the Company (“Board” and “Directors” respectively) has adopted various
policies and procedures to ensure compliance with the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). In the opinion
of the Board, the Company had complied with the code provisions of the
CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2022 (“Year”), except
for code provision(s) C.2.1, C.1.6 and F.2.2 with considered reason(s)

explained below.

CORPORATE STRATEGY AND LONG TERM BUSINESS
MODEL

During the Year, the Company was principally engaged in the sector of
hotel investment in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). The Company’s
corporate objective is to create and enhance value for Shareholders. To
achieve this corporate objective, the business strategies of the Company
are to maintain the long term growth and the profitability of the Company.
Coupled with the development plan for the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area (GBA) of the government of the PRC, the Directors see
that our main operations continue to stay within the core engine of the
development in the region. The Company is committed to maintaining a
solid and healthy financial status with a solid cash balance and an efficient
debt/equity ratio that will enable the Company to finance the existing

operations and proceed with potential investments.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises seven Directors including four executive
Directors (“Executive Directors”) and three independent non-executive
Directors (“INED(s)”) whose biographical details are set out in the “Directors’

Profile” in this annual report.

The Board is principally accountable to Shareholders and responsible for
the leadership and control of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
"Group”), including formulating strategies, establishing strategic directions,
overseeing the Group’s businesses and systems of risk management
and internal controls, monitoring operating and financial performance,
setting objectives and business development plans, and monitoring the

performance of senior management.

The Board has delegated operational decisions to the Executive Directors.

Daily operations and administration are delegated to the management.

In addition, the Board has established the audit committee, the
remuneration committee, the nomination committee and the corporate
governance committee to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s

affairs.

The Board meets regularly each year to review the financial and operating
performance of the Group, and review and approve the Group’s annual and
interim results, and other matters which need to be dealt with. Additional
Board meetings will be held as and when required. Resolutions in writing
may be passed by all Directors in lieu of a meeting pursuant to bye-laws of

the Company (“Bye-Laws").

During the Year, sixteen (16) full Board meetings (including four regular

Board meetings) were held.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2022
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The attendance of each Board member at the full meetings of the Board

and the annual general meeting of the Company held during the Year is set

out as follows:

Corporate Governance Report
TEERHRSE

BEEFERERAFEARITHNERETES
BEARBRRBERG ZHFEBRAOT

Number of Meetings
Attended/Held

HE S BTEERY
Annual
Board General
Meeting Meeting
Directors B=E EEZgeE RRBEFAS
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Tam Chung Sun (Chairman) BIAR S (F/E) 8/16 0/1
Dr. Ho Chuk Man, James GElpq 10/11 171
(appointed with effect from 22 April 2022) (B=—F - —FIH —+ - HEEZ(E)
Mr. Lu Zhiming R AR BR S A 0/1 N/AA 3 FA
(appointed with effect from 11 November 2022) (£ =ZF = —4#F+—H+—H#EEZ(T)
Mr. Tsang Ming To LEREEA 212 N/A 3 A
(appointed with effect from 17 October 2022) (A =ZF = —4F+A++ HEEZT)
Mr. Lai Tsz Wah MFELEE 8/8 N/AT3E A
(resigned with effect from 1 August 2022) (B=—ZF=—F 1 A—H#EET)
Mr. Liu Hao BE - 2/2 N/ATNE A
(resigned with effect from 3 March 2022) (B -—F = —#=H=HEFTF)
Mr. Wong Kam Fai b)) e N/AZNgE A N/AZNE
(appointed with effect from 1 August 2022 and (B —ZF = —#F/1H—HHEEZITR
resigned with effect from 8 August 2022) A=F = —F /1A NHEET)
Independent Non-executive Directors BAFHITES
Mr. Chen Zeng Guang BRI e S 11/11 01
(appointed with effect from 22 April 2022) (B—F - —#pm A+ _—HEEZF)
Mr. Tong Wing Chi BB RAE 4/4 11
(appointed with effect from (B=FE-—FNAFTNHAEEZF)
19 September 2022)
Mr. Wan Kwun Lun bR e 2/2 N/AE A
(appointed with effect from 17 October 2022) (B —ZF = —4#+ A++ HEEZ(T)
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva FEENLE 4/4 N/ARNE A
(resigned with effect from 22 April 2022) (B =—F = —4FpIH —+ = HEET)
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert EBES A 12/12 01
(resigned with effect from 10 October 2022) (B=F=—F+H+HEFHF)
Mr. Sin Chi Fai HeREEE A 13/14 0/1
(resigned with effect from 11 November 2022) (B =ZE 4 +—F+—HIEEFF)
j(/e\?gmxﬂg?xﬂxﬁg%;g 1 7
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RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE BOARD MEMBERS

None of the members of the Board has any relationship (including financial,

business, family or other material/relevant relations) between each other.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Company has purchased appropriate directors and officers liability
insurance in respect of legal actions against the Directors and officers of the

Group arising from the performance of his/her duties.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Company does not at present have any officer
with the title of “chief executive officer” but instead the duties of chief

executive officer are performed by managing director.

The chairman of the Company (“Chairman”) is responsible for the
leadership of the Board, and the formulation of strategies and policies
of the Group while the managing director of the Company (“Managing
Director”) is responsible for the management of the business of the Group,
and the implementation of major strategies. The division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and the Managing Director is clearly established
and set out in writing. Mr. Tam Chung Sun is the Chairman and Mr. Lai Tsz
Wah (resigned with effect from 1 August 2022) is the former Managing

Director.

Since the resignation of Mr. Lai Tsz Wah as Managing Director and
Executive Director of the Company on 1 August 2022, the position of
Managing Director has been vacated. In order to ensure smooth operation,
the Executive Directors are responsible for implementing the Company’s
strategy, managing and monitoring the performance of the management

and overseeing the daily operations of the Company.

Code provision F.2.2 of the CG Code stipulates that the chairman of the
board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Tam Chung Sun,
the Chairman, was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 27 September 2022 (“2022 AGM") due to COVID-19
restrictions. Dr. Ho Chuk Man, James, an executive Director, attended and
took the chair of the 2022 AGM in accordance with Bye-Law 68 of the Bye-

Laws and answered questions from shareholders of the Company.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from
each of the INEDs as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. On
29 July 2022, the nomination committee of the Company (“Nomination
Committee”) held a meeting to assess the independence of INEDs. Taking
into account the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules, the Nomination Committee considered that all INEDs remained

independent.

Pursuant to C.1.6 of the CG Code, INEDs should attend the annual general
meeting of the Company to gain and develop a balanced understanding
of the views of the Shareholders. The former INEDs, Mr. Poon Kwok Hing,
Albert and Mr. Sin Chi Fai, and the current INED, Mr. Chen Zeng Guang,
did not attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 2022

AGM due to other business engagements.

During the Year, the chairman of the Board had held a meeting with the
INEDs without the presence of the other Executive Directors and non-

executive Directors.

DIRECTORS" TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

According to code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh

their knowledge and skills.

During the Year, Directors were provided with materials on the corporate
governance and the latest developments of the Listing Rules for their
reading. Directors were also provided with monthly updates on the Group’s

business and financial matters.

From time to time, the company secretary of the Company (“Company
Secretary”) circulates details of training courses which may be of interests to
the Directors. The Directors are encouraged to attend the relevant training
courses and seminars organised by professional bodies at the Company’s

expenses.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

According to the records received by the Company, the current Directors
(namely, Mr. Tam Chung Sun, Dr. Ho Chuk Man, James, Mr. Lu Zhiming,
Mr. Tsang Ming To, Mr. Chen Zeng Guang, Mr. Tong Wing Chi, Mr. Wan
Kwun Lun, participated in continuous professional development during the

Year by reading materials provided by the Company.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS" SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as its own code for dealing in securities of the Company by the
Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries with all the Directors
and they have confirmed their compliance with the required standard set

out in the Model Code during the Year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit Committee”)

with written terms of reference in line with the CG Code.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three INEDs, namely, Mr. Tong
Wing Chi (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Chen Zeng Guang and

Mr. Wan Kwun Lun.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are (i) to review the
financial information of the Company and to oversee the relationship with
the external auditor; (i) to assist the Board to review the Group’s financial
reporting system, and risk management and internal control systems
(including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function); and (iii) to make recommendations to the Board on the

appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external auditor.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

During the Year, the Audit Committee held six meetings and performed,

inter alia, the following work:

M

reviewed the financial reporting matters including the annual results
for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the interim results for the
six months ended 30 June 2022 and make recommendations to the
Board;

made recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Yongtuo
Fuson CPA Limited as external auditor of the Company for the
financial year ended 31 December 2021 to fill the casual vacancy
following the resignation of TANDEM (HK) CPA Limited.

made recommendations to the Board on the appointment of McMillan
Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited as external auditor of the Company
for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 to fill the casual

vacancy following the resignation of Yongtuo Fuson CPA Limited;

approved the engagement letter of external auditor for the year

ended 31 December 2021;

considered and made recommendation to the Board on the

re-appointment of external auditor at the 2022 AGM; and

reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and

internal control systems of the Group.
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TP A—h—
TEERME
AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED) BEREES W
The attendance of individual members at the meetings of the Audit &BEZZEeRENAFERNLETHEE 2L
Committee held during the Year is as follows: EERIAT
Number of Meetings
Attended/Held
Members of Audit Committee ERZEERE i BITEERE
Mr. Tong Wing Chi ERE A N/AA i A
(appointed with effect from 19 September 2022) (B—ZE - —FNA+NHEEZE)
Mr. Chen Zeng Guang PRI e e 3/3
(appointed with effect from 22 April 2022) (B—ZF - —FpA[ —+ _—HIEEZT)
Mr. Wan Kwun Lun BB A N/AZNiE A
(appointed with effect from 17 October 2022) (B=F=——F+H+LHEEZF)
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva EIE v e 3/3
(resigned with effect from 22 April 2022) (B=ZF == H =+ = HEEFF)
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert EERE L 6/6
(resigned with effect from 10 October2022) (B —ZF = —&F+ A+ HFEFT)
Mr. Sin Chi Fai BB 6/6

(resigned with effect from 11 November 2022)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee (“Remuneration

Committee”) with written terms of reference in line with the CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three INEDs, namely Mr.
Chen Zeng Guang (chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Tong
Wing Chi and Mr. Wan Kwun Lun, and one Executive Director, namely, Dr.
Ho Chuk Man, James.

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are (i) to
consider and to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and senior management
of the Company; (ii) to review and determine the remuneration and
compensation packages of the Executive Directors and the senior
management of the Company; and (iii) to make recommendations to the

Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held seven meetings and

performed, inter alia, the following work:

(1) reviewed and approved the remuneration packages of the new (M

Executive and INEDs;

(2) reviewed the remuneration policy of the Company and the (2)

remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and the senior

management of the Company for 2022; and

(3) reviewed and made recommendation to the Board on the (3)

remuneration of the INEDs for 2023.

The attendance of individual members at the meetings of the Remuneration

Committee held during the Year is set out below:
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Number of Meetings

Attended/Held

Members of Remuneration Committee FHEEERE HEBITEERRE

Mr. Chen Zeng Guang BRIE K 5T 6/6
(appointed with effect from 22 April 2022) (B—F - —#Fpm A+ _—HEEZF)

Mr. Tong Wing Chi BB A 3/3
(appointed with effect from 19 September 2022) (B—F——F A+ HEEZ(T)

Mr. Wan Kwun Lun ST B o A 11
(appointed with effect from 17 October 2022) (B —F——F+A++HEEZ(T)

Dr. Ho Chuk Man, James GElpq 3/6
(appointed with effect from 8 August 2022) (B=—ZF - —F/NA/\HEEZE)

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva L E N/AZNE
(resigned with effect from 22 April 2022) (B =—F = —4FpIH —+ = HEET)

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert B E A A 4/4
(resigned with effect from 10 October 2022) (B =—ZF = —F+ -+ HEFF)

Mr. Lai Tsz Wah FFESLE 1”1
(resigned with effect from 1 August 2022) (B=—F=-—#F/H—HEFT)

Mr. Wong Kam Fai b)) vt N/AZNE

(appointed with effect from 1 August 2022 and
resigned with effect from 8 August 2022)

Directors are remunerated with reference to their respective duties and

responsibilities with the Company and prevailing market conditions.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

During the Year, no Directors were involved in deciding his own

remuneration.

Details of emoluments of the Directors for the Year are disclosed in note 12

to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management for the Year is

within the following bands:

FMEE= @)
WREER  BEEE2MATEARA Y I -

EERNAFEZHMEHBEERAFRELNHE
WRMEE12

BREEABRAFE 2 FHMELTHRER

Number of
Senior
Management
ERERAEHE

Up to HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 7 1

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee (“Nomination

Committee”) with written terms of reference in line with the CG Code.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises two INEDs, namely, Mr.
Tong Wing Chi (chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Chen Zeng
Guang and Mr. Wan Kwun Lun and one Executive Director, namely, Dr. Ho

Chuk Man, James.

The main responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are (i) to review
the structure, size and composition, and the diversity of the Board at least
annually with due regard to the Board Diversity Policy (as defined below)
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the corporate strategy of the Company; (ii) to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board having due
regard to the Board Diversity Policy; (iii) to assess the independence of
INEDs; (iv) to review regularly the time required from a Director to perform
his/her responsibilities to the Company; and (v) to make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors; (vi) to review the Board Diversity Policy,
as appropriate, and review the measurable objectives, if any, that the Board
has set for achieving diversity on the Board, as well as assess the progress
on achieving the objectives; and (vii) to review the Board Nomination Policy

(as defined below), as appropriate.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held seven meetings and

performed, inter alia, the following work:

—~
—

) assessed the independence of INEDs;

(2) considered and made recommendations to the Board on the

re-appointment of retiring Directors at the 2022 AGM;

(3) reviewed the nominations of Directors and recommended their

appointments to the Board for approval;

(4) reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board in light of

the Board Diversity Policy; and

(5) reviewed the time required from a Director to perform his

ERERME
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responsibilities to the Company.

The attendance of individual members at the meetings of the Nomination

Committee held during the Year is as follows:

BB o

RERIAT

BREZEGRENAFEANRTHGH 2

Number of Meetings

Attended/Held

Members of Nomination Committee REZEERE HEBITEERRE

Mr. Tong Wing Chi BB A 33
(appointed with effect from 19 September 2022) (B=FE-_—FNA+TAEEEE)

Mr. Chen Zeng Guang PRI e S A 6/6
(appointed with effect from 22 April 2022) (B=—F = —FIH —+ - HEEZE)

Mr. Wan Kwun Lun BT B S A 71
(appointed with effect from 17 October 2022) (B=—F=——F+A++HEEST)

Dr. Ho Chuk Man, James (Elpqi 3/6
(appointed with effect from 8 August 2022) (B=F==F/\ANNAEEZT)

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva EIE v e N/ANE A
(resigned with effect from 22 April 2022) (B=—ZF=——FpH —+ = HEEFF)

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert B A A 7
(resigned with effect from 10 October 2022) (B =—ZF = —F+ A+ HEFT)

Mr. Lai Tsz Wah RBFERE ”n
(resigned with effect from 1 August 2022) (B=—ZF = —FN\A—HEEFT)

Mr. Wong Kam Fai =IRE AL N/AA 3 F

(appointed with effect from 1 August 2022 and
resigned with effect from 8 August 2022)

(B=F=——F/\H—HEEZER
g -F - —F 1A/ HEEE)
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board recognizes the importance of diversity in relation to its business,
and has adopted the Board diversity policy (“Board Diversity Policy”)
to guide the Board in achieving its diversity in terms of gender, age,
educational background, skills, knowledge, professional experience and
length of service in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board. For
details of the gender ratio in the Company’s workforce as at 31 December
2022, please refer to the ESG report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022.

The Nomination Committee will give adequate consideration to the Board

Diversity Policy when recommending candidates to the Board.

Board appointments will be based on merit, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria with due regard for the benefits of

diversity each candidate can bring to the overall Board composition.

In reviewing and assessing the composition of the Board, the Nomination
Committee will consider the benefits of all aspects of diversity, including

but not limited to, those described above.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness, and recommend any required

revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

Having reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and taken into account the
existing composition of the Board and the business nature of the Group,
the Nomination Committee considered that increasing diversity at the Board
level as an essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development and plans to appoint at least

one female Director by the end of December 2024.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2022

EEERELTEER
EZGRAZSTEHEEBNEEN  WEK
MEZGREZTEBR(EZTEKEZTL
B D) - DAMRSIESSEMR - Fik - HES
=R AF - BELCRERBFRAEE
BEZnl  miEAESSNERE - BEAE
NEBE-_TE-_—F+-_A=+—HWEIMK
ALLBIFESS @ BLHEARRABE_ZS_F
TZA=T—HIEFEMESGRE °

EXeRENZEHARARL BRE - &
ZRIFEAFUATBREERDBREIREAT
RESSBERANTRNZ T8 -

Riget R HESSAKE - REZEEKE
BREITEZ s BEETRRLEX
P

RAZBEHRESRNEFENBRZ TR
B UEAREARE  TREESRHEAE
BEEBRAHEREHA -

B EEEXREZTTIEBRREREZER
BHEREARENEBIEER  REZEER
EEEEZLCREENASFERREER
RABEERZVERER  YFER -0
F+AREREREL —RLUESE -



Corporate Governance Report

BOARD NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee has adopted a Board nomination policy
("Nomination Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and nomination

procedures to identify, select and recommend candidates for Directors.

The Nomination Committee shall consider the following factors in assessing
the suitability of a proposed candidate for directorship or for proposed

re-appointment of a Director:

(@) integrity;

(b) qualifications including skills, knowledge and professional experience

that are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy;

(0 commitment to devote sufficient time in carrying out duties as a

director of the Company;

(d) Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives adopted by the

Board for achieving diversity on the Board,;

(e) for a proposed appointment of an INED, whether the candidate
would be considered independent with reference to the independent

guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

(f) in the case of a proposed re-appointment of an INED, the number of

years he/she has already served; and

(g) potential/actual conflict of interest that may create.

These factors are not meant to be exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination
Committee may consider such other factors that may enhance the

effectiveness of the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of the proposal on
appointment of a new Director made by any Board members and the
biographical information (or relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate
such candidate based on the nomination criteria set out above and make
recommendation for the Board’s consideration and approval. The Board will
decide the appointment based on the recommendation of the Nomination

Committee.
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BOARD NOMINATION POLICY (CONTINUED)

For re-appointment of retiring Directors, the Nomination Committee
will review the overall service to the Company of the retiring Director
who wishes to stand for re-election at the general meeting, including
the attendance of Board and Board committee meetings, and the level
of participation and performance on the Board during his/her term. The
Nomination Committee will also review and determine whether the retiring
Director continues to meet the nomination criteria set out above. The
Nomination Committee will make recommendation to the Board and the
Board will then make recommendation to the Shareholders in respect of

the proposed re-election of Director at the general meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company has established a corporate governance committee
("Corporate Governance Committee”) with written terms of reference in

line with the CG Code.

The Corporate Governance Committee currently comprises three INEDs,
namely, Mr. Chen Zeng Guang, Mr. Tong Wing Chi and Mr. Wan Kwun
Lun and one Executive Director, namely, Dr. Ho Chuk Man, James (Chairman

of the Corporate Governance Committee).

The main responsibilities of the Corporate Governance Committee are (i)
to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board; (ii) to review and
monitor the training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management; (iii) to review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and (iv)
to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in

the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the Corporate Governance Committee held two meetings

and had performed, inter alia, the following work:

(1) reviewed the Company’s practices on corporate governance and
the Company’s practices in compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

(2) reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and for the six months ended 30 June 2022
and disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report and the interim

report; and

(3) reviewed the training and continuous professional development of
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Directors.

The attendance of individual members at the meetings of the Corporate

Governance Committee held during the Year is as follows:

B/ EH

ZHEBRIT

EpMESLATE S e

KERAFERNRITNGH

Number of Meetings

Attended/Held

Members of Corporate Governance Committee ¥EARZEESEHE HEBITERAE

Dr. Ho Chuk Man, James el Al >+ 1/2
(appointed with effect from 8 August 2022) (B=ZF=——F\A/\AEEZE)

Mr. Chen Zeng Guang BRIG H SE 2/2
(appointed with effect from 22 April 2022) (B=F=—FH -+ =-HEEZF)

Mr. Tong Wing Chi KB RE N/AZNE A
(appointed with effect from 19 September 2022) (B=—F=——F WA+ NHEEST)

Mr. Wan Kwun Lun BB N/AAN i
(appointed with effect from 17 October 2022) (B=—F=——F+A++HEEST)

Mr. Lai Tsz Wah BFERE 1”1
(resigned with effect from 1 August 2022) (B=F=—F/\A—HEFHF)

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva SPEELAE N/AZNE A
(resigned with effect from 22 April 2022) (B —ZF = —&F/ A —+ - HEFT)

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert 33 B B 5 A 2/2
(resigned with effect from 10 October 2022) (B=—ZF——#+H+HEEF)

Mr. Wong Kam Fai EIEL A N/AZNE A
(appointed with effect from 1 August 2022 and (B=—ZF=——F )\A—HEEZTR
resigned with effect from 8 August 2022) g —ZF - —4 /)1 A/1HEFIT)

k/%Em&ﬂ;?'szﬁE%;?ﬁ 29



30

Corporate Governance Report
TEERWRSE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements for each financial period which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and of the financial performance and
cash flows for such financial period. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the Year, the Directors have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, and made judgments and estimates
that are prudent, fair and reasonable. The Directors have prepared the

consolidated financial statements for the Year on a going concern basis.

Auditor’s Responsibilities and Remuneration

The fee payable for audit services provided by McMillan Woods (Hong
Kong) CPA Limited (“McMillian Woods"), the auditor of the Company, was
approximately HK$1,500,000 (2021: HK$1,500,000).

The statement of McMillan regarding its reporting responsibilities are set

out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page 49.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibility to ensure the Group,
setting appropriate policies and maintaining its effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management systems. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against

material misstatement or loss.

On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee evaluates the effectiveness
of the internal control and risk management systems of the Company, the
main features including the reliability of financial reporting, effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programs and budgets as well. The process includes identification,
evaluation, management measures and control and review. Meetings
are held regularly to review the effectiveness of the internal control and
risk management systems, to identify any significant management and

operational risks as well as control failings or weaknesses.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (CONTINUED)
Risk Management and Internal Controls (CONTINUED)

During the Year, the Company has outsourced its internal control audit
function to an independent accounting firm covering the review of key
internal controls in selected areas based on key operational, financial and
compliance risks as identified under the risk management framework and
as advised by the Audit Committee and the management. The independent
accounting firm is staffed with persons with relevant qualifications and
experience. They reported directly and primarily to the Audit Committee
and assist the Board in monitoring and managing the risks and internal
controls of the Group. They also planned their internal audit schedules
in consultation with, but independently of the management. The Audit
Committee reviewed the activities of the independent accounting firm
on a regular basis, including the overseeing and monitoring of the
implementation improvements on the weaknesses of the system of internal

controls within the Group.

In accordance with the internal control audit plan, the independent
accounting firm has conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of
the Company’s system of internal controls. Weaknesses in internal controls
and recommendations for areas of improvements have been reported to
the Audit Committee. Following the receipt of such recommendations,
the Company has fully implemented the recommendations to further
strengthen the risk management framework and internal control system
during 2022. The Audit Committee was satisfied that there were no
significant control failings, weaknesses or significant areas of concern
identified during the Year which might affect Shareholders. It concluded
that an adequate and effective internal control system is maintained to

safeguard the Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets.

The Audit Committee has also reviewed the effectiveness and adequacy of
the internal control audit function and the Audit Committee considers that

the internal control audit function is adequately resourced.

The Board has received a confirmation from management on the

effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems.
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TRERHE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (CONTINUED)
Framework for Disclosure of Inside Information

The Company has adopted a policy on Disclosure of Inside Information
which set out the procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information in a timely manner pursuant to
Rules 13.09 and 13.10 of the Listing Rules and the Inside Information
Provision (as defined under the Listing Rules) under Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy with no fixed dividend payouts.
The actual dividend that the Board may recommend or declare in respect of
any particular financial year or period is subject to a number of factors and

at the discretion of the Board.

The Board will take into account the following factors when considering the

payment of dividends:
(@) the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;

(b) the level of retained earnings and distributable reserves of the

Company;

() the level of the Group's debts to equity ratio, return on equity and the

relevant financial covenants;

(d) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the

Group’s lenders;

(e) the Group's expected working capital requirements and future

expansion plans;

(f)  general economic conditions, and other internal or external factors
that may have an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Company; and

(g) any other factors deemed relevant by the Board.

The payment of dividends is also subject to any restrictions under Bermuda

laws and the Bye-Laws.

The Board will review the dividend policy from time to time.
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Corporate Governance Report

COMPANY SECRETARY

The former Company Secretaries, Ms. Law Sau Lai and Mr. Lo Kam Tai,
resigned with effect from 7 March 2022 and 7 June 2023 respectively.
During the Year, the former Company Secretaries had complied with
the relevant professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules. Mr. Yuen Wai Keung, currently a managing director of a
corporate professional service firm in Hong Kong, was appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company on 7 June 2023. Mr. Yuen Wai Keung
("Mr. Yuen”), is not a full time employee of the Company, the primary
contact person whom Mr. Yuen Wai Keung shall be contacted in respect
of company secretarial matters was Mr. Tam Chung Sun, chairman of
the Company and his delegates. For the Year, Mr. Yuen has confirmed
that he has taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training

respectively in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company acknowledges the importance of communicating with
Shareholders. The Board has adopted a Shareholders’ communication policy

setting out formal channels of communication with Shareholders.

The Company maintains continuing communication with Shareholders
through a number of channels including financial reports (interim and
annual reports), announcements, annual general meetings and other
general meetings that may be convened as well as other documents

submitted to the Stock Exchange.

Information relating to the Group is available on the Company’s website at

www.gbadynamic.com.

The Company uses general meetings as a tool to effectively communicate
with Shareholders and provide Shareholders with the opportunity of asking

questions on any relevant matters.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings of the
Company or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on

their behalf if they are unable to attend the meetings.

Directors, appropriate management executives and the external auditor
are available at the annual general meetings of the Company to answer

Shareholders’ questions.
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TEERWRSE

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Secretaries Limited at 17th Floor, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong. To the extent the requisite information of the Company
is publicly available, Shareholders may at any time send enquiry(ies) to
the Board in writing by mail to the head office and principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit 2209, 22nd Floor, Tower
2, Ever Gain Plaza, 88 Container Port Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary or by email to

info@gbadynamic.com.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general

meetings of the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a Special
General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, registered
Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth (10%) of such of the paid-up capital of the Company as at
the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at general meetings of the

Company, may request the Board to convene a special general meeting.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and be
signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited at the registered office of the
Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda
for the attention of the Company Secretary and may consist of several

documents in like form, each signed by one or more requisitionists.

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong and upon confirmation that the request is proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will arrange with the Board to convene a
special general meeting by serving sufficient notice to all Shareholders in
accordance with the requirements set out in the Listing Rules and the Bye-

Laws.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene a Special
General Meeting (CONTINUED)

In the event that the requisition has been verified as not in order, the
requisitionist(s) concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly,

a special general meeting will not be convened as requested.

If the Board does not within twenty-one (21) days from the date of the
deposit of a valid requisition, proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more than one half (50%) of
the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the said date of deposit of the requisition. A general meeting
so convened by the requisitionist(s) shall be convened in the same manner,
as nearly as possible as that in which meetings are to be convened by the
Board.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals
at General Meetings

Pursuant to Section 79 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, either (i)
any number of registered Shareholders representing not less than one-
twentieth (5%) of the total voting rights of all Shareholders having at
the date of the requisition a right to vote at the general meeting of the
Company to which the requisition relates; or (ii) not less than one hundred
(100) of such Shareholders, can submit a requisition in writing to the

Company:

(@) to give to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of next annual
general meeting notice of any resolution (other than a proposal for
election as a Director) which may properly be moved and is intended

to be moved at that meeting; and

(b) to circulate Shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than one thousand
(1,000) words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed

resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals
at General Meetings (CONTINUED)

The written requisition must be signed by the requisitionist(s) (may consist
of one or several documents in like form, each signed by one or more
requisitionist(s) and deposited at the registered office of the Company at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the
attention of the Company Secretary with a sum reasonably sufficient to
meet the Company’s relevant expenses and not less than six weeks before
the annual general meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of
resolution or not less than one week before the general meeting in case of
any other requisition. Provided that if an annual general meeting is called
for a date six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the
copy though not deposited within the time required shall be deemed to

have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share registrar
and transfer office in Hong Kong and upon confirmation that the request
is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will arrange with the Board
to include the resolution in the agenda for the annual general meeting or

circulating the statement for the general meeting.

In the event that the requisition is not in order or the requisitionist(s)
concerned have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company'’s
expenses for the said purpose, the requisitionist(s) concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not
be included in the agenda for the annual general meeting or the statement

will not be circulated for the general meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director

As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election as a Director,
please refer to the procedures made available on the Company’s website at

www.gbadynamic.com.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

No amendments were made to the Company’s Memorandum of Association

and Bye-Laws during the Year.
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The directors of the Company (“Directors”) present their report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022
("Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal subsidiaries
are engaged in the business of hotel operation and trading of securities.
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022

are set out in note 36 to the consolidation financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 57

and 58 of this annual report.

The board of Directors (“Board”) has resolved not to recommend a final
dividend for the Year (2021: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business, a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of important events affecting
the Group's business that have occurred since the end of the financial year
2022 and a discussion on future development in the Group’s business
are set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 2 to 7
respectively of this annual report. Also, details of financial risks are set
out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements. The aforesaid

discussions form part of this report of the Directors.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of the environment
and communities in which it engages from time to time. The Group
achieves this through rational resources utilisation and compliance with
applicable environmental laws and practices of environmental protection,
health and safety, workplace conditions and employment. The Group
continues to improve the environmental performance as an integral and

fundamental part of the business strategy and operating methods.

A separate environmental, social and governance report will be published
on the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the

Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations. Sufficient resources and training have been allocated and
provided to ensure the on-going compliance with those applicable laws and
regulations. During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date
of this report, the Board was unaware of any incidence of non-compliance
with applicable laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the

Group's business where the Group is operating.

RELATIONSHIP WITH MAJOR STAKEHOLDERS

The Group is committed to operate in a sustainable manner while balancing
the interests of its various stakeholders including customers, suppliers and
employees. During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date
of this report, there were no material and significant disputes between
the Group and its key stakeholders. The Group will continue to ensure
effective communication and maintain good relationship with each of its

key stakeholders.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2022

BRRBRNEKRE

AEERETREEXBZRERMHBNE
BERHAHEN ARBEERILBEETER
BEZEREARETERRR RBERE
2 TEEHARRERZERRRERRLE
B o AEBEERTTIRARRBUME/ERRE
N BB TR B R E A o

BB @ REAMEBNBER S REE
BRAREAABEESITHE -

BFERERER
REEEREFEERECEEE R TETHE
REERER R - AEBE SR RIEHERE
HERREIABRSEETZIEREZER
EHRoBETE-__F+A=+—HLEE
AREZARER  EFSWAATBEEM
NETHEAERERER  EWEH RS KLE
FIEZ A EEEBEEARTE o

HIBHNE ZBE

REBBMAAEE R NLE - W R T
HARFHE(BERR  HEBRKEES) ZE
o BEE_F+_A=+—HILFEA
REEAHREENS  AEEREFEHHEL
BEARBEFE ASEREEBRREAES
EEROEREFBUEBRMETRITEIE



FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group for the past five years is set out on page

179 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the

Year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

In addition to the accumulated profits, under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, contributed surplus is also available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of

contributed surplus, if there are reasonable grounds for believing that:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they

become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium account.

In the opinion of the Directors, the reserves of the Company which were
available for distribution to Shareholders at 31 December 2022 were
approximately HK$1,338.4 million (2021: HK$1,557.6 million).

BORROWINGS

Details of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2022 are set out in

note 23 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during

the Year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES OF THE GROUP

Particulars of the properties of the Group as at 31 December 2022 are set

out on pages 180 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Tam Chung Sun (Chairman)
Dr. Ho Chuk Man, James
(appointed with effect from 22 April 2022)
Mr. Lu Zhiming
(appointed with effect from 11 November 2022)
Mr. Tsang Ming To
(appointed with effect from 17 October 2022)
Mr. Lai Tsz Wah
(resigned with effect from 1 August 2022)
Mr. Liu Hao
(resigned with effect from 3 March 2022)
Mr. Wong Kam Fai
(appointed with effect from 1 August 2022 and resigned
with effect from 8 August 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chen Zeng Guang

(appointed with effect from 22 April 2022)
Mr. Tong Wing Chi

(appointed with effect from 19 September 2022)
Mr. Wan Kwun Lun

(appointed with effect from 17 October 2022)
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva

(resigned with effect from 22 April 2022)
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert

(resigned with effect from 10 October 2022)
Mr. Sin Chi Fai

(resigned with effect from 11 November 2022)
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES OF THE GROUP
(CONTINUED)

In accordance with Bye-Law 99 of the bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-
Laws") and code provision B.2.2 of the Corporate Governance Code (“CG
Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of the
Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Stock Exchange”), Mr. Tam Chung Sun and Dr. Ho Chuk Man, James
shall retire from office by rotation at the 2023 annual general meeting of
the Company (“2023 AGM") and, being eligible, have offered themselves

for re-election.

In accordance with Bye-Law 102(B) of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Tsang Ming To,
who was appointed by the Board as an executive Director with effect from
17 October 2022; Mr. Lu Zhiming, who was appointed by the Board as an
executive Director with effect from 11 November 2022; Mr. Tong Wing Chi,
who was appointed by the Board as an independent non-executive Director
with effect from 19 September 2022, and Mr. Wan Kwun Lun, who was
appointed by the Board as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 17 October 2022, shall hold office until the AGM and, being

eligible, have offered themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2023 AGM
has a service contract with the Group which is not determinable by the
employing company within one year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws and subject to the provisions of the statutes,
the Directors shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duty of their respective offices or in relation thereto. The
Company has arranged appropriate Directors and officers liability insurance

for the Directors and officers of the Group during the Year.
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DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

Year or at any time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or

existed during the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 30 May 2013, the Company adopted a share option scheme (“Scheme”)
which is valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on 3 June
2013 (the date on which the last condition to the Scheme was satisfied)
until 2 June 2023, subject to early termination by the Company in general

meeting or by the Board.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Scheme, when aggregated with any shares subject to any
other schemes of the Company, is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue on the date of adoption of the Scheme
(“Scheme Mandate Limit"”) unless the Company obtains an approval from
Shareholders in a general meeting to refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit
provided that the Scheme Mandate Limit so refreshed must not exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of approval of
refreshment by Shareholders. Nevertheless, the maximum number of shares
of the Company which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and not yet exercised under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the issued

shares of the Company from time to time.

At the special general meeting of the Company held on 1 June 2017,
Shareholders approved the refreshment of the Scheme Mandate Limit. As
at the date of this annual report, the total number of options available for
granting by the Company under the Scheme was 78,921,104, representing

10% of the shares of the Company in issue on that date.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The number of shares of the Company in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme and other share option scheme(s) of the
Company to any Participant in aggregate in any 12-month period up to
and including the date of such grant is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue. Any grant of further options above this

limit shall be subject to the requirements under the Listing Rules.

Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder of the Company or
any independent non-executive Director, or any of their respective associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules), would result in the number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to be
granted to such person in 12-month period up to and including the date of

such grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of the Company in

issue; and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the shares of

the Company on the date of each grant in excess of HK$5 million;

such grant of options shall be subject to approval of Shareholders in general

meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules.

The subscription price of the options under the Scheme will be a price
determined by the Board, in its absolute discretion, but in any case will not

be lower than the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
guotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which
must be a trading day;

(i)  the average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iii)  the nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of grant.

The exercise period of the Scheme has been expired on 23 April 2022.

Further details of the Scheme are set out in note 28 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) AR REST

Details of the movements of the share options under the Scheme during ~ RAFEER » :ZT 2B FTHBRRE 2 &

the Year were as follows:

Number of share options

BREZE
Outstanding Cancelled/ Outstanding
as at Granted  Exercised lapsed as at Exercise
1 January during during  during the 31 December Date of price
Eligible participant 2022 the Year the Year Year 2022 Grant per share Exercise period
RZ-BzZf
R=BzZf +=A
—-A—H REFE REFE REAEE =t-H
RERSEE i RATEE AR RITE WEHE /&M MARTE RHAE BRTEE TS
HK$
BT

Directors

55

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva 500,000 - - (500,000) - 2442017 0.590 24.4.2017 -
(resigned with effect from 23.4.2022
22 April 2022)

BEIEE

(B-F-—#mA—+—H

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert 500,000 - - (500,000) - 2442017 0.590 24.4.2017 -
(resigned with effect from 23.4.2022
10 October 2022)

EEESE

(B—F-—#1H+H
HEHE)

Mr. Sin Chi Fai 500,000 - - (500,000) - 2442017 0.590 24.4.2017 -
(resigned with effect from 23.4.2022
11 November 2022)

hEBEE

(B-F-—#+-H+—H

Employee(s) 500,000 - - (500,000) - 2442017 0.590 24.4.2017 -

BT 23.4.2022

Other eligible participants 26,000,000 - - (26,000,000) - 2442017 0.590 24.4.2017 -

HitRERSHE 234.2022

Total 28,000,000
it

= - (28,000,000 -

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” above, at
no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other

body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests or short positions of the Directors in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the

Listing Rules were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and the underlying
shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group during the
Year or existed at the end of the Year except for the share options as

disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group had not entered into any transactions, which

constitute connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Report of the Directors

EEEWE

BERDIEZ 2L

B EXRBRERT &) —SpT I EE & SN - RAEF
EA - AR B S E AR E A B ERT S
R BEESAERBAR R RERNEAME
ABRZ B EFmERS -

EE2RM - HEARDRESE
oy Iy
MWZZE-—#F+-F=+—0 22RARQ
S E AR EE (F & R EHF LG
FHRHEIE A ]) EXVER) 2Bk - BERG &
EHEREERBEES LAEEOIE352ETE
TFrERMATTeE - SRR LR AR+ 2
FIBITAZERH®RITESFRSRETA([1Z
TR BNERNRB RBRTzEmRAR
U

=
&

RARTARGEEBERD 2FR

R-ZE-_—HF+-F=+—H BESEENAK
NRIHEA AR EE (ER R ES RS G
EXVER) 2B - MR S ES R HE FER
o oA B R R IR B A A E 1601 88 3521%
BT HEF2ELMA - REZETENE
AN B B L e

>+

NS

IR A thh

B X BRUERT 8 | —E PR ER eV B AR A S -
ARBNAFEEAINAFEERE - BT
WAEREEE Sek Al E

RAFER » AEBERETLEFRZS @ Mk
EXSRBELTRANFAIAEBREERS °

REEBREZNEZREBMAT
20226 3R

45



46

Report of the Directors

EEEWSE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the Year, none of the Directors is considered to have interests in
business which compete or are likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of persons,
other than Directors, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO

were as follows:

Long positions in the shares of the Company

EENEHRF

EE Sl S

RAFER  BEEEEXBPEEES - M
ZEBBRREANEE 2 EEEXARERF B
FEH AR B RPN -

FERRRHAMA TR KRE
BERD 2 ERERAR

WZZE-——#F+-F=+—08  REZEHFLY
EIEPIFE3361&B T HBF 2 BT MATRE:  EF
LASNA TR AR R RIS RABBIRR (5 2 e o Bk
-

RARTARMD 2HFR

Approximate

percentage

of the issued

Number of share capital of

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest Notes shares held the Company
EARRE
BBRITRE
IRER AR B RmitE B eE FiEROBEHA ZBHRBE D
China Enterprises Limited (“CEL") Interest of controlled corporation 1 48,660,424 6.17%
REEE S
Cosmos Regent Ltd. Beneficial owner 1 43,325,554 5.49%
ERBEBA
Note: FifsE

(1) CEL was deemed to be interested in 48,660,424 shares of the Company
through its interest in its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Cosmos Regent Ltd.
and Million Good Limited, which held 43,325,554 shares of the Company
and 5,334,870 shares of the Company respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022 the Company had not
been notified of any other persons who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Changes in information of Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the date of the 2022 interim report

are as follows:

Mr. Tong Wing Chi

With effect from 10 October 2022, the director’'s fee of Mr. Tong was
changed from HK$100,000 per annum to HK$150,000 per annum.

Other updated information regarding the Directors required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules is set out in the Directors’

Profile on pages 8 to 13 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

PROVIDENT FUND SCHEMES

Particulars of the Group's provident fund schemes are set out in note 29 to

the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws or the
applicable laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new

shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate amount of purchases and turnover attributable to the
Group's five largest suppliers and customers were less than 30% of the

total value of the Group's purchases and turnover respectively.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules as at the date of this annual

report.
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DONATIONS

No charitable donation was made by the Group during the Year (2021: Nil).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details on the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the

Corporate Governance Report on pages 15 to 36 of this annual report.

AUDITOR

TANDEM (HK) CPA Limited (“"TANDEM"), which was the auditor of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021, has resigned as the
auditor of the Company with effect from 13 January 2022. Yongtuo Fuson
CPA Limited (“Yongtuo”) was appointed as the auditor of the Company
with effect from 13 January 2022 to fill the casual vacancy arising from the
resignation of TANDEM. Yongtuo has resigned as auditor of the Company
with effect from 19 May 2022. McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
("McMillan Woods") was appointed as auditor of the Company with effect
from 23 May 2022 to fill the casual vacancy arising from the resignation of
Yongtuo and to hold office until the conclusion of the forthcoming annual

general meeting of the Company.

McMillan Woods will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for
re-appointment at the 2023 AGM. Having approved by the Board upon the
Audit Committee’s recommendation, a resolution for the re-appointment of
McMillan Woods as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the 2023
AGM.

On behalf of the Board

TAM CHUNG SUN
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 23 June 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report

M McMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of GREATER BAY
AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 57
to 178 which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion except for the possible effects of the matters described in

"

the “Basis for Qualified Opinion ” section of our report, the consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance

with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

The Group recognised a financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss for an unlisted equity investment in EMTHBLECEERER AR
(" 38 2 % & ") amounted to RMB5,011,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$6,013,000) pursuant to a shares transfer agreement entered into with
an independent third party of the Group (the “Equity Investment”) for the
year ended 31 December 2021. The Group also recognised an advance
to # ¥ ¥ & amounted to RMB32,748,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$39,297,000) pursuant to an advance agreement (the “Advance
Agreement”) entered in 2021, which was included in “trade and other

receivables” as at 31 December 2021.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021 was qualified for limitation of audit
scope as we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the validity, commercial substance and business rationale of
the abovementioned transactions that led to the (i) classification of the
Equity Investment as financial asset at fair value through profit or loss in
accordance with HKFRS 9 or interest in associate in accordance with HKAS
28 for the year ended 31 December 2021; and (ii) measurement of the
Equity Investment at fair value under HKFRS 9 or equity method under
HKAS 28 and there were no alternative audit procedures that we could
perform to satisfy ourselves as to whether the abovementioned transactions
were free from material misstatement. The Equity Investment was disposed

during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Our opinion on the current year's consolidated financial statements is also
modified because of the possible effect of this matter on the comparability
of the current year's figures and corresponding figure in relation to the “Loss
on disposal of financial asset at fair value through profit or loss” amounted
to HK$ 1,562,000 as disclosed in the consolidated income statement for the

year ended 31 December 2022 and the related note disclosures.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for

our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)
Valuation of investment properties

Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key audit matter
due to the significance of the balance to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, together with the judgements involved in
determining the fair value.

The Group's investment properties represent a completed complex for
commercial use located in the PRC. As at 31 December 2022, the carrying
value of the Group’s investment properties amounted to nil and a loss
on change in fair value of HK$22,000,000 has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
during the year.

The Group's investment properties are stated at fair value based on
valuation performed by management using income capitalisation approach.

Details of the valuation techniques and significant inputs used in the
valuation are disclosed in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

The valuation of investment properties are dependent on certain inputs,
including market rent and management estimation.

Our procedures in relation to the evaluation of the appropriateness of the
valuation of investment properties included:

Evaluating the competence, experience and objectivity of management
as well as the appropriateness of management’s scope of work;

—  Reviewing the valuation calculation prepared by management and
understanding from management and the valuation basis and
methodology used and underlying assumptions applied;

—  Evaluating the reasonableness of the underlying data including the
term rent and market rent used by management; and

—  Performing market research and analysis to assess whether the
changes in fair value of investment properties that resulted from the
valuation was reasonable.

We consider that the Group’s valuation of investment properties is
supported by the available evidence.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements

and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative

but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by those charged with
governance in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group'’s

financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R R S (IE S

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body in accordance with Section 90 the Bermuda Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

—  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group'’s internal control.

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made

by the directors.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

—  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

—  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that

we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R R S (IE S

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest

benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s

report is Wong Ka Bo, Jimmy.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Ka Bo, Jimmy

Practising Certificate Number: PO7560

Hong Kong, 23 June 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

] = N7/
?ﬂ'\/E\ Hfm

R EA 2 E W SR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—EC-CHF —E-—%F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
k=S FHET FiT
Revenue WA 5 53,241 79,067
Cost of sales THE A (26,405) (38,683)
Gross profit EF 26,836 40,384
Other income, gains and losses, net HaWA ~ W 21855 7 21,210 28,162
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR - 15,045
Loss on disposal of financial asset at fair HEFBRBREATEENEZ
value through profit or loss TREEEE 17 (1,562) =
Loss on fair value changes of investment &Y EAFEEE
properties B eS8 18 (22,000) (33,483)
Selling and distribution expenses SHE KD HHR S (220) (327)
Administrative and other operating TR R HE MR
expenses (51,888) (84,699)
Finance costs LR NN 8 (3,361) (3,330)
Loss before tax B AT 1B (30,985) (38,248)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisFiile, (M%) 9 5,553 (22)
Loss for the year FREE 10 (25,432) (38,270)
Other comprehensive income/ BREBEtmEENE,
(expense) after tax: 5]
ltems that may be reclassified HEgngeEmsBEEmm
subsequently to profit or loss: HE -
Exchange differences arising on BREBINEBREEZER
translation of foreign operations =78 (79,121) 10,310
Other comprehensive income/(expense) RNEFHMEEKES(FX)
for the year (79,121) 10,310
Total comprehensive expenses AEELHMAXEE
for the year (104,553) (27,960)
KREBEBRENEZERERAT
20224 3R 57



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meBEmkEAEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE - - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—EC-CfF —E-—4F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
k=S FTHET FT
Loss for the year attributable to: BTHALTEEREERS
Owners of the Company AAREAA (23,455) (33,410)
Non-controlling interests FEFERR M A (1,977) (4,860)
(25,432) (38,270)
Total comprehensive expenses BHTIALTEERFERER
for the year attributable to: B 4EE .
Owners of the Company RAREEB A (102,627) (21,359)
Non-controlling interests FEIZERR A A (1,926) (6,601)
(104,553) (27,960)
HK$ HK$
B BT
Loss per share BEKEERRORILEE
ko BRER
Basic and diluted BEARREE 14 (0.03) (0.04)
58 GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BB R R

At 31 December 2022 W —_ZE - —F+-_A=+—H

As at 31 December

R+t=—HA=+—8
2022 2021
—E- 8 —E-—%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BiaE FET FAET
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - HER R 15 181,331 189,993
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 458 812
Financial asset at fair value through FERBREATEENEZ
profit or loss CREE 17 - 6,013
Investment properties KB 18 - 22,000
181,789 218,818
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 19 882 865
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EAMEKERK 20 39,855 70,043
Bank balance and cash RITHEHRNIRS 21 1,702,846 1,782,734
1,743,583 1,853,642
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERRR 22 10,490 46,559
Interest-bearing borrowing ATREE 23 22,000 22,000
Tax payables JERTHR IR 17,227 18,114
Lease liabilities HEBE 24 356 956
Contract liabilities AHBE 25 649 660
50,722 88,289
Net current assets hEBEEFE 1,692,861 1,765,353
Total assets less current liabilities EERERABERE 1,874,650 1,984,171
EEZZNEZERERAR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R

At 31 December 2022 W —_ZE - —F+_-A=+—H

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2022 2021
—E- 8 —E-—%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BisE FET FET
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FERIEE & 26 15,567 20,709
Lease liabilities HEAaE 24 174 -
15,741 20,709
NET ASSETS MR R 1,858,909 1,963,462
Share capital &N 27 7,892 7,892
Reserves =X 1,676,740 1,779,367
Equity attributable to owners of the RNATER AL R
Company 1,684,632 1,787,259
Non-controlling interests IR R 174,277 176,203
TOTAL EQUITY A 1,858,909 1,963,462

BRESTEF1ISEZRANBHRREN S
TEERNAtBEESESHERRET
% WA THEERERES

The consolidated financial statements on pages 57 to 178 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2023 and are
signed on its behalf by:

Ho Chuk Man, James Tsang Ming To AT AlI 3z &N
Director Director o EE
60 GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ERREAZER

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARTHEARLE
Share-hased Non-
Share Special Translation  payments Other Accumulated controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve loss Total  interests equity

Bx  RARE ERRR UBRRRE RtREE  ROER At FEREE RO
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK§'000  HK§'000
TRt TR TR TR TEr  TEr  TEn  TEnr  ThEn

(note a) (note b)
(Hizta) (Kizth)
At 1 January 2021 RZE--£-F-H 7892 2,019,055 66,870 7,038 (70319 (197,532 1,833,004 182,804 2,015,808
Loss for the year FRERRE - - - - - (334100 (334100 (48600  (38210)
Other comprehensive income/ AEEEp2ENG/ (FR):
(expenses) for the year:
Exchange differences arising on REBINEBRELL
translation of foreign operations EiEE - - 12,051 - - - 12,051 (1,741) 10,310
Total comprehensive incorne/ FERRENE/(Fx)

(expense) for the year g - - 12,051 - - (334100 (21359 (6,601)  (27,960)
Lapse of share options BlERN - - - (1,254) - 1,54 - - -
Disposal of subsidaries HENBAT - - - - (438 - (243%) - (2438
At 31 December 2021 RZB=-F+ZA=1-A 7892 2,019,055 78921 5,784 (94,705 (229,688) 1,787,259 176,203 1,963,462
At 1 January 2022 WZE-ZE-f-H 7892 2,019,055 78,921 5,784 (94,705)  (229,688) 1,787,259 176,203 1,963,462
Loss for the year KEERE - - - - - (BASY) (3455)  (1971) (25432
Other comprehensive income/ AEEEBEENS/

(expenses) for the year: (F%):
Exchange differences arising on BEEINSBRELL

translation of foreign operations EiZE - - (1917) - - - (1917) 5 (19121)
Total comprehensive expense AERRERX S

for the year - - (79172) - - (23455) (102,627 (1,926)  (104,553)
Lapse of share options BRERM - - - (5.784) - 5,784 - - -
At 31 December 2022 R-B--#+-B=t+-R 7892 2,019,055 (251) - (94,705)  (247,359) 1,684,632 174277 1,858,909

EERZNERRERLF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
%‘Aﬂxii‘ﬁﬁﬁ%@%

Notes:

(a)

Special reserve represents the contributed surplus of the Company arising
from: (i) the difference between the nominal value of the shares of the
subsidiaries acquired and the nominal value of the shares of the Company
issued for the acquisition under the group reorganisation in prior years;
(if) reduction in share capital during prior years; and (iii) reduction in share
premium in December 2019. The reserve is available for distribution under
The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Acquisition of additional interest in an entity that is already controlled by
the Group is accounted for as equity transaction. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s interests and non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Other
reserves represent the differences between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid that are recognised directly in equity.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

SERIRER

2022 2021
—E-fF - —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KRR
Loss for the year from continuing operations HIBISE TS 2 KFEE B (25,432) (38,270)
Adjustments for: T
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13 ~ #eE R R EZITE 12,341 28,984
Depreciation of right of use assets REEEITE 858 1,809
Interest income FEUA (17,253) (20,368)
Finance costs BERA 3,361 3,330
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - s KRB B8
equipment - 5
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE B ARz Y - (12,038)
Loss on fair value changes of investments held BRIEEEREZ AN TERE
for trading B e - (20)
Loss on fair value changes of investment WEMEZ N TEBESE) 2 EE
properties 22,000 33,483
Income tax (credit)/expense Fri5H (%), i (1,653) 22
Loss on disposal of financial asset at fair value HESEBBEREATEEFEZ
through profit or loss TRIEE 2 EE 1,562 =
Operating cash flows before movements LEEREEEIZ
in working capital KERERE (4,216) (3,063)
Change in inventories FEEE) (17) 43
Change in trade and other receivables B REMERERES) 30,188 (33,955)
Change in investments held for trading REEBREZH) - 136
Change in trade and other payables B 5 REMERNRREH (39,206) (959)
Change in contract liabilities BHEaEED (11) (1,370)
Cash used in operations KEXBMAZR® (13,262) (39,168)
PRC income tax (paid)/refund, net (B, BEZREMERFE - (22)
Net cash used in operating activities KETEFTACZRSFE (13,262) (39,190)

A8 T ER A

LBRENBERARA
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERNER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—-ZT——

FH-A=t—RHIFE

2022 2021
—EC- 8 —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Interest received B FIE 17,253 20,368
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE - MES R (472) (541)
Addition to right-of-use assets NELAEEE (504) =
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HESREBERIEZATEBEFEZ
at fair value through profit or loss SENEEZFTSHIEA 4,451 -
Investment in financial asset at fair value REBEREATEENE
through profit or loss ZEMEBEEIIRE - (6,013)
Proceed from disposal of subsidiaries i E M A R PTSFIE - 102
Net cash generated from REFHME2RELFTE
investing activities 20,728 13,916
FINANCING ACTIVITIES & EE
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEEESE (426) (1,778)
Interest paid EAIHE - (3,330)
Net cash used in financing activities RMETEMAZRSFE (426) (5,108)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash BeRBSSHEER 28M, (Bd)
equivalents HEE 7,040 (30,382)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ~ F¥IIR& KR ESEEEE 1,782,734 1,814,810
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes fERE ) 8 (86,928) (1,694)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRESRRESEEER 1,702,846 1,782,734
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents ReRREEZEFEE DN
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE R 1,702,846 1,782,734
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED (the
“Company”) is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability and its issued shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the corporate information section to the

annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (together with the Company collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the businesses of hotel operations
and trading of securities. The details of the principal subsidiaries are

set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

Other than those subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") which functional currency is Renminbi (“"RMB"),
the functional currency of the Company and its other subsidiaries is
Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK$ and rounded to the nearest thousands unless

otherwise indicated.

e SRR MR

—RER
NEBEZENEERERAR(TARF]D)
REFEAMR L REREERAR - &
EEITROINEBMARZAERAR
(TBE 2P ) £77 » ARR 2 i M FE R
TEEEMHB 2 MU BN AFRZ ARE
o
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CERARRISBAIANEE]) TENELK
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BRI A M SRR M 36 o

BrfErh 2 AR AANE (A Bl 1) Az 2 MY 8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e RS R AR 3

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“HKASS")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has adopted the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") that are relevant to its operations
and effective for its accounting year beginning on 1 January 2022 as
mentioned below. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS");
and Interpretations. The adoption of these new and amendments to
HKFRSs did not result in significant changes to the Group’s accounting
policies, presentation of the Group’s financial statements and amounts

reported for the current year and prior years.

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:

Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of

Fulfilling a Contract
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual

Framework

Amendments to HKFRS 16
(March 2021)

Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

Annual Improvements Project Annual Improvements to HKFRS

Standards 2018-2020

Amendments to Accounting
Guideline 5

Merger Accounting for Common

Control Combinations

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - -~ +_-_A=+—HItFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“"HKASS")
(CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective which may

be relevant to the Company:

Effective for accounting
periods beginning

on or after

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Classification 1 January 2024

of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Non-current 1 January 2024

Liabilities with Covenants

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS 1 January 2023
Practice Statement 2 — Disclosure of

Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 8 — Definition of 1 January 2023

Accounting Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Deferred Tax 1 January 2023
Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising

from a Single Transaction

Amendments to HKFRS 16 — Lease 1 January 2024

Liability in a Sales and Leaseback

2. BAMEEYBREES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e RS R AR ?I

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ("HKASS")
(CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs but not yet
effective (CONTINUED)

Effective for accounting
periods beginning

on or after

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS To be determined
28 — Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate

or Joint Venture

HKFRS 17 (including the June 2020
and December 2021 Amendments to
HKFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts)

1 January 2023

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) 1 January 2024
Presentation of Financial Statements

— Classification by the Borrower of a

Term Loan that Contains a Repayment

on Demand Clause.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of these
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. The consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as

explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16"), and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories

or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements (CONTINUED)

For financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
investment properties which are transacted at fair value and
a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be used
to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition the results of

the valuation technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can

access at the measurement date;

e level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
e has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one

or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control

until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=y i%iﬁ%ﬁﬁ%

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (CONTINUED)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling

interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in

line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group's equity therein, which represent ownership
interest entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net

assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (CONTINUED)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) or, when applicable, the cost on initial

recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE - - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or

services underlying the particular performance obligation is

transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a

bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct

goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction

of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following

criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the

benefits provided by the Group's performance as the

Group performs;

e the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that

the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an

enforceable right to payment for performance completed

to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(CONTINUED)

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group's unconditional right to consideration,
i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of that

consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)

from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same

contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations (such as packages that bundle food and beverage
and other services with hotel stays), the Group allocates the
transaction price to each performance obligation on a relative

stand-alone selling price basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)
(CONTINUED)

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the Group
would sell a promised good or service separately to a customer.
If a stand-alone selling price is not directly observable, the
Group estimates it using appropriate techniques such that
the transaction price ultimately allocated to any performance
obligation reflects the amount of consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the

promised goods or services to the customer.

Overtime revenue recognition: measurement of progress

towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of the goods or services transferred to the customer to
date relative to the remaining goods or services promised under
the contract, that best depict the Group’s performance in

transferring control of goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to consideration
in an amount that corresponds directly with the value of the
Group's performance completed to date, the Group recognises
revenue in the amount to which the Group has the right to

invoice.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)
(CONTINUED)

Contract costs
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the
Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it would

not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions) as an asset
if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so recognised is
subsequently amortised to profit or loss on a systematic basis
that is consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods

or services to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within one

year.

3.

e SRR MR

HREBBRR2HEREER
FESTTHER@®

3.2 TESHBE®)

RZEENEFHEN (BES
BX 5 1E) (&)

BRI
VI =N LTI ZN

RSANMIZERARAEE BEUS
EPAHMELNKA @ HAFRE
BH - AITEELEZEFRA -

fRTRHIR M ZE AR - AR E
ZERAHERT ) EAREE ° &0
SR 2 BERRIZAGCEEEH
ERn REEEATPERZEE
1ERE 2 B an sk RFS — 2K o

W2 S A A B R I Al AT — F R 78
2HHERLE  ARBERAATE
HRBEABRGANNIEEKRAE
EIEERKRIE -

REBEZNERRARDT
20226 3R

77



78

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE - - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time

in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application or arising from business combinations, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date
or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are

subsequently changed.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of staff quarters that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. Lease payments on short- term leases are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease

term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. KEUHEBRR2EREER
FESTTHER@®

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED) 3.2 FESHBE®

Leases (CONTINUED) HE(®)

The Group as a lessee AEBERRBA

Right-of-use assets EHERE

The cost of right-of-use asset includes: ERAEEEZARBLE -

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability; e UAFEHEBECESRE

INGECISE A ISR ARS O]
MEMK - HEEAMEREZ
HEEE: &

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement o

date, less any lease incentives received; and

REBEESE ZEMNBEEX
o

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group. o

Except for those that are classified as investment properties
and measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets
are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease

liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over

the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Leases (CONTINUED)
The Group as a lessee (CONTINUED)
Right-of-use assets (CONTINUED)

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property as a separate line item on the

consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value
at initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments

and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present
value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest

rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. S8 BH{RZFEEEER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FESTTHER@®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED) 3.2 FEEHBXR®)

Leases (CONTINUED)
The Group as a lessee (CONTINUED)
Lease liabilities (CONTINUED)

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less

any lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by

interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the

consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a

finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-

line basis over the lease term.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary

course of business are presented as revenue.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Leases (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessor (CONTINUED)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease

payments from lessees.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non- monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies (CONTINUED)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the
exchange rates at the date of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as

appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the

Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period which they are incurred as the Group does not have any

qualified assets.

HREBBRR2HEREER
FESTTHER@®

3.2 TESHBE®)

S ()

RIEZDGAFBRERZEN K&
BREzEERBEDNERE RS
R ERERGMERAREZ 258
¥ (BIETT) - WARFXIAR LA
FERIGE - M K% B A
BERS  AERNRS A HNE
o EAZEAZR(WA)RNEME
TS HERR, - I PARE W e B O
=3 R (R AIHERER (WER) -

K& BRI EH (AL EAKE
RIESNE 2 280 BB R
REMBRAI(BEHEINER) 2
HE - NRBEBEABIGBEZE
B ES Rt 2 A E R ZRER

e o
FrEEER o

EEHE

MR AEE L EBEMNASEREE T
BEERAREEE BN IR AR

o8

REBRZNEZRERDLA

2022 5K

83



84

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions

attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended

to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable. Such grants are

presented under “other income, gains and losses, net”.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

The obligations for contributions to the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme in Hong Kong are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss as incurred. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group had no forfeited contribution

available to reduce the contribution payable in the future years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. S8 BH{RZFEEEER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FESTTHER@®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED) 3.2 FEEHBXR®)

Employee benefits (CONTINUED)
Retirement benefit costs (CONTINUED)

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
employees of the Group's entities established in the PRC are
required to participate in defined contribution retirement plans
organised by local governments. Contributions to these plans
are expensed in profit or loss as incurred and other than these
monthly contributions, the Group has no further obligation for

the payment of retirement benefits to its employees.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and
when employees rendered the services. All short- term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an

asset.

A liability is recognised for wages and salaries accruing to

employees after deducting any amount already paid.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payments transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the

equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share-based payments reserve). At the
end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate
of the number of equity instruments expected to vest based
on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share-based payments reserve. For share options that
vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share

options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payments reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share- based payments reserve

will be transferred to accumulated losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted

or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Taxation (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and

they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available

to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to

recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Taxation (CONTINUED)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather

than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of- use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use

assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial recognition
of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
not recognised due to application of the initial recognition
exemption. Temporary differences arising from subsequent
revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of lease liabilities and
lease modifications, that are not subject to initial recognition
exemption are recognised on the date of remeasurement or

modification.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Taxation (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied

to the same taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets”
in the consolidated statement of financial position. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-
lease building element and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as property,

plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment (CONTINUED)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
interest is classified and accounted for as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis. Any such property interest
which has been classified as an investment property is accounted
for as if it were held under a finance lease (see “Leases” under
note 3), and the same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied to other investment properties leased
under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as
described in note 3.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value,
adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease
income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the period
in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE - - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Investment properties (CONTINUED)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the

period in which the property is derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any indication
that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment

loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash- generating
unit (“CGU") to which the asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets are allocated
to the relevant CGU when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be established, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU or group of CGUs to which
the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying

amount of the relevant CGU or group of CGUs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (CONTINUED)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or
a CGU) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not

been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which cannot
be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of CGUs,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion
of corporate assets allocated to that group of CGUs, with the
recoverable amount of the group of CGUs. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then
to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit or the group of CGUs. The
carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of
CGUs. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

HREBBRR2HEREER
FESTTHER@®

3.2 TESHBE®)

W* - BERRGEURCEHE
BEZHIE ()

A ESE SR FEEROERAR
ERBEEME ZREE - RFHER
BER - At RRRSRERBHA
PFIREFIRELHIRE - MABRITRE
[ bR & Al 5 B W S B (E A R b AT
ARBREMERERHE 2 EE(FR
SELBM) 2R ERRZFE o

Wt —REE(SIREELEN)
ARESRERNEREE - AZEE
E(FReEEEN) 2 REEEIR
EHETWROEE - MEEEEER—
HEENREERSELBUNEERE
ERXBACEEEMNS - NEEK—
HReEABNNFEAE(BESER
ERARSELBUNDEEENR
DEEEENREE) EZARTE
AFREMMREE 2 TR S RETTH
B o DECREEERR - BEDERE
B8 - OB E R (R ) 2 ik
HE - EmREEL S ZARTES
Bh&EBEEEREERLIINE
EHMEE - HERZEEREET
BERAT=E2F&aE  ZEE
ZAFEENRLEKRA IR EE)
2% AEREEWATETET -
RESEEZEEZREBRSER
TREBI DB EZ BN RZAR S E
EEMHEMEE o REBIERIRNE

-

REBRZNEZRERDF

2022F %,

23



94

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE - - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (CONTINUED)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGUs) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUs) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately

in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale. Cost necessary to make
the sale, include incremental costs directly attributable to the
sale and non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to

make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established

by regulation or convention in the market place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial

liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary

course of business are presented as revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting

contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. S8 BHRZFEEEER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FESHBE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 TESHBE®)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(CONTINUED)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business

combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in

the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;

or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or

significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE - - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(CONTINUED)

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit- impaired. For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset

is no longer credit-impaired.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost include trade

and other receivables and bank balances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(CONTINUED)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss is included in the “other

income, gains and losses, net” line item.

The Group’s financial assets measured at FVTPL included

investments held for trading.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade and
other receivables, deposits and bank balances) which are subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk

since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12— month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessments are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of

future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases in the

likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE - - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H=

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without

undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased

significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

e  significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit

spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to

meet its debt obligations;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=y i%iﬁ%ﬁﬁ%

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets (CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (CONTINUED)
o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt

obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2022

%mﬂﬁﬁﬁzF%EE&
\ x = n-I_BIBE

3.2 FEEHBXR®)
THT A
SMEEE)
BREERE )

(i)

EERBEELME)

BEBARERENERN
EREEEL

BREBARTREBE
fEtae NEBE TR BT
AEE - M ESHRS
MERRERNEATF
Bk o

Tem LR EEER - AEE
RBR - WA KN A HEB30
R ABERERAREER

ROBEIZM  BIFAEEA
wBARIEAAEBENERERA

¥

T o

TRpE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H=

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

i)

Significant increase in credit risk (CONTINUED)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A
financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
(i) it has a low risk of default, (ii) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and (iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil
its contractual cash flow obligations. All financial assets,
except for trade and other receivables, are determined to

have low credit risk.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past

due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE - - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

(ii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default

criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more

events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated

future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes

observable data about the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider; or

it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE - - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

(iv)

(v)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.

Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the

respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #H=

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (CONTINUED)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined

at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are considered
on a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as
forward looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

o Nature of financial instruments;

. Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE - - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (CONTINUED)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share

similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated

based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade and
other receivables where the corresponding adjustment is

recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the

contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or

when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks

and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised

cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the

sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in

profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. S8 BH{RZFEEEER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FESHBE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 TESHBE®)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial

liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The Group's financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and interest-bearing borrowing are subsequently

measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and

payable is recognised in profit or loss.

EETHE)
THEERKA
S BETE A

B RBRATERA L ZAEIA
ReERMABREATRAZERDER
TRB AT -

RATA

BAT RIEERANEREENREMN

BRERZHSERNEAEH - H

AABETZRATRIZEWERAE
SRR E R BRI TRARER

EHAE

A+ mABRERRAERMNERER
BIERART E R IRE BIBSIR AT E
Bt o

HE R EN TR E

AEENERAERRES NEMLE
NEEFARG SEE - TRAERT
TORIRBHRR AR TEIRFE -

IR A E

EREEAKE 2B ERMER - BUB
HOBHE - ARE TSR IERS
BEE- CRIEERZEBREEZR
EEEENREMRERZ ZENE
ot

2 o

Bk

AEEREHRERAERAR
2022 5K

109



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(@ A person or a close member of that person’ s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the

Group or of a parent of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and

fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of

a group of which the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

%-"r“/—\ a1 i%i&%ﬁﬁé‘

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)

Related parties (CONTINUED)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (CONTINUED)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the

Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to

the Group or to a parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (CONTINUED)
Related parties (CONTINUED)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:
(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to Group’s
executive directors for the purpose of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group's various types
of services provided and activities carried out and geographical

locations.

Individual material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority

of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ

from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on- going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the

revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company have made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the

consolidated financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment for hotel properties

The Group has developed certain criteria in making judgements
whether the hotel properties are qualified and recognised in property,
plant and equipment. The directors of the Company consider
whether the ancillary services are significant in the hotel operation.
Some hotel properties comprises a portion that is held to earn rental
income, and another portion that is held for use in the operation of
hotel business. If the portions could be sold separately or leased out
separately under a finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions
separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the property is
an investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services. Judgement is made
in an individual property basis to determine whether the above criteria
are so significant that property does not qualify as an investment

property.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE - - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of- use assets are stated
at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. In
determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to exercise
judgement and make estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether
an event has occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by
the recoverable amount, in the case of value in use, the net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to
be applied in estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset (including
right- of-use assets), the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit to which the assets belongs, including
allocation of corporate assets when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, otherwise recoverable amount
is determined at the smallest group of cash generating units, for
which the relevant corporate assets have been allocated. Changing
the assumptions and estimates, including the discount rates or the
growth rate in the cash flow projections, could materially affect
the recoverable amounts. Furthermore, the cash flows projections,
growth rate and discount rate are subject to greater uncertainties in
the current year due to the uncertainty on how the global economic

recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic may progress and evolve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (CONTINUED)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets were HK$181,331,000 and
HK$458,000 (2021: HK$189,993,000 and HK$812,000) respectively,
after taking into account the impairment losses of HK$nil (2021:
HK$nil) in respect of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets that have been recognised respectively. Details of the
impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets are disclosed in notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial

statements respectively.

Depreciation of hotel properties

Hotel properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives with consideration of the remaining term of the
leases and the remaining years of co-operative period. Their useful
lives reflect the directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group
intends to derive economic benefits from the use of the Group’s hotel
properties. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could
affect the rate at which the hotel properties are depreciated and the

carrying amount of the hotel properties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE - - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (CONTINUED)
Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the valuation
performed by management (2021: an independent professional
valuer). The determination of the fair value involves certain estimation
of market conditions and assumptions of the investment properties

which are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

In relying on the valuation report, the directors of the Company have
exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the assumption in the

valuation are reflective of the current market conditions.

Changes to these assumptions would result in changes in the fair
values of the Group's investment properties and the corresponding

adjustments to the amount of loss reported in profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of the Group’s
investment properties is HK$nil (2021: HK$22,000,000) after taking
into account the loss on fair value changes of investment properties of
HK$22,000,000 (2021: HK$33,483,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax asset

As at 31 December 2022, no deferred tax asset has been recognised
on the tax losses of HK$631,445,000 (2021: HK$631,445,000) due
to the unpredictability of future profits streams. The realisability of the
deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits
or taxable temporary differences will be available in the future, which
is a key source of estimation uncertainty especially in the current year
given the significant uncertainty on the economic recovery of the
Group’s hotel operations due to the COVID-19 pandemic. In cases
where the actual future taxable profits generated are more than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which result in revision
of future taxable profits estimation, a material recognition of deferred
tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for

the period in which such a recognition takes place.

Impairment of other receivables

For other receivables, the Group has assessed whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If there has
been a significant increase in credit risk, the Group will measure the
loss allowance based on lifetime rather than 12m ECL. Assessments
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
general conditions, internal credit ratings and an assessment of both
the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast
of future conditions. The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of other
receivables was HK$35,988,000 (2021: HK$65,629,000), after taking

into account the impairment losses of HK$nil (2021: HK$nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

5. REVENUE 5. WA
The Group owns/leases and operates hotels and provides hotel REEHE, TERSERE - WIREH
management and related services. The Group also owns investment JEER RMERRY - AEBEITEBIREY
properties for property rental business. Revenue recognised in the FEMEREER - FRRNGEVBERE
consolidated financial statements during the year are as follows: NRER 2 BWAZAT
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with REEFEHZBANDSE
customers
2022 2021
—E-CE T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FT
Hotel operations B E ZE T
— Hotel rooms —BIEERE 29,619 23,690
— Food & beverage — B 2,836 7,976
Revenue from contract with customers HEFEHA 32,455 31,666
Rental income from leases REMAEZHE WA 20,786 47,401
Total revenue FELION 53,241 79,067
Revenue from contract with customers by ZiEmSE s 2 BEF
geographical markets A KA
—the PRC — 32,455 31,666
Timing of recognition of revenue from contract £2& 54 49U A B FERRRF S
with customers
- At a point in time — PR 1 24 2,836 7,976
— Over time — BERFFE 29,619 23,690
32,455 31,666
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE (CONTINUED)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

The Group's revenue from contracts with customers consist of hotel

rooms and food and beverage.

The transaction price of hotel rooms and food and beverage is the
amount collected from the customer for such goods and services. The
transaction price for such transactions is recorded as revenue when
the good or service is transferred or rendered to the customer during
their stay at the hotel or when the delivery is made for food and

beverage.

The Group has certain contracts that include multiple goods and
services, such as packages that bundle food and beverage and other
services with hotel stays. For such arrangements, the Group allocates
revenue to each good or service based upon its relative standalone
selling price. The Group primarily determines the standalone selling
price of hotel rooms and food and beverage based upon the amount
that the Group charges when each is sold separately in similar

circumstances to similar customers.

The Group elects to apply the practical expedient under HKFRS 15 and
does not disclose the amount of the transaction price allocated to the
remaining obligations for contracts with an original expected duration

for one year or less or contracts for hotel operations.

e SRR MR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

5. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

5. WA

Leases HE
2022 2021
—E-CE T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
For operating leases: MEMHEEmS
Lease payments that are fixed BEEHAENR 20,786 47,401

No contingent rental is included in operating lease income.

The Group leases out various offices, warehouses, advertising spaces,
restaurants and retail stores under operating leases. The leases

typically run for an initial period of one to eight years.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the
lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the respective
functional currencies of the group entities. The lease contracts do not
contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase

the property at the end of lease term.

GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENTS

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company, being
the chief operating decision makers (“CODM"), for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses
on types of services provided and activities carried out by the Group's

operating divisions.

No operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at the

reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS 8

Operating Segments are as follows:

(1) Hotel operations — hotel accommodation, food and beverage
services and rental income from rentals of shop units situated
in the hotels of the Group and from rentals of investment

properties; and

(2)  Securities trading — trading of equity securities.

6.

e SRR MR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE - - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. RESEm®
Segment revenue and results TERBRAREE
The following is analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by ITAREBRAREEZARENE L
reportable segments: DT
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-E--F+=-A=+—HLFE
Hotel Securities
operations trading Consolidated
EIRRE HHEE e
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FER FET
Segment revenue oA 53,241 - 53,241
Segment profit excluding DI (TREDE
depreciation of property, plant 132 & 3% A K {F F 42
and equipment and right-of- BENE W% #HEk
use assets, impairment loss on RERERE - ARER
property, plant and equipment  BREEAFEEAEZS
and loss on fair value changes REEZ A FEEEHE
of financial assets at fair value )
through profit or loss 27,512 - 27,512
Depreciation of property, plant ~ #72% - #22 M REITE
and equipment (12,341) - (12,341)
Depreciation of right-of-use EREEENE
assets (858) - (858)
Segment profit pag Vil 14,313 - 14,313
Unallocated income and expenses k7B A R 55
Directors’ emoluments BE=Me (2,803)
Loss on fair value changes on RENEZ NFEESHN
investment properties E18 (22,000)
Loss on disposal of financial asset {H&BBI8mIL A FEET
at fair value through profit or BZeREECER
loss (1,562)
Interest income on bank deposits  $R1T1FR < F BUA 17,253
Central administrative costs and A RITEAK A R A D ELE
unallocated corporate expenses ~ Fxz (36,186)
Loss before tax BRELAIEE (30,985)
122 GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)

Segment revenue and results (CONTINUED)

Year ended 31 December 2021

6- II‘E(I:""

TREBRARESE®)

Hotel Securities
operations trading Consolidated
BB BHEER ey
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FAT
Segment revenue WA 79,067 - 79,067
Segment profit excluding DN (EEDE
depreciation of property, plant  #23 & 38 5 A K {5 FA i
and equipment and right-of- BEE  WFE - #ERk
use assets, impairment loss on RIBREER - A RFFE
property, plant and equipment ~ EEIZE z A BEE
and loss on fair value changes &18)
of investments held for trading 40,384 48 40,432
Depreciation of property, plant ~ #7% - #28 MR EITE
and equipment (28,984) - (28,984)
Depreciation of right-of-use REEENE
assets (1,809) - (1,809)
Loss on fair value changes of BEEERENTEEY
investments held for trading [E518 = (20) (20)
Segment profit pax Vol 9,591 28 9,619
Unallocated income and expenses A ERYA R BT <5
Directors’ emoluments Sl (2,348)
Interest income on bank deposits  $R1T7F 2 F B U A 20,368
Loss on fair value changes of WEMENTEBEZEEE
investment properties (33,483)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries  H &M E A A2 W 15,045
Central administrative costs and AR RITEK A R AR DR
unallocated corporate expenses X (47,448)
Loss before tax BrRATAIE R (38,248)

REBRZNEZRERDF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)

Segment revenue and results (CONTINUED)

Segment loss represents the loss from each segment without
allocation of directors’ emoluments, interest income on bank deposits,
loss on fair value changes of investment properties, loss on disposal of
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss, gain on disposal of
subsidiaries and central administrative costs and unallocated corporate
expenses. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes

of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by

reportable and operating segments:

RER 2N K 2=
LS

DHEWRAREE®)

HEEEERYBELZER  EPRIR
DEEEME - RITERZMBUA - &
BMEZANTEEESHER HEEBE
BEAFEEAEZEREEZERE W
EMTE QR 2 W Em A K RATEARAR FoR
DERLEMAX - WA EREERRES
BEESBERMIEREZAENDE -

THEERERE

AT BREEIZARERZEEDEEE
KREBES

2022 2021
—E-CF T4
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Segment assets PTEEE
Hotel operations TBRAS 222,526 261,713
Securities trading BHERE - =
Total segment assets DIEERE 222,526 261,713
Investment properties wEE - 22,000
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR RS 1,702,846 1,782,734
Other unallocated assets EtADEEE - 6,013
Consolidated assets REEE 1,925,372 2,072,460
Segment liabilities PEEE
Hotel operations HE S 1,669 48,175
Securities trading BEEE - =
Total segment liabilities HEBEEBTE 1,669 48,175
Tax payables JERI 1A 17,227 18,114
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIEAE 15,567 20,709
Interest-bearing borrowing EEE 22,000 22,000
Other unallocated liabilities = N Y= 10,000 -
Consolidated liabilities reEAaE 66,463 108,998
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED) 6.
Segment assets and liabilities (CONTINUED)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating

resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
investment properties, bank balances and cash, assets classified as

held for sale and other unallocated assets; and

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than tax
payables, deferred tax liabilities, interest-bearing borrowing,
liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale and

other unallocated liabilities.

%-"r‘/—\ a1 i%i&%ffﬁ éI

RER 2N K 2=
REDFH @)

PTHEEEREEB®)
BRERSERBRUEHBIETED

o FIEEBEHSHIRELENIE W
B - RITEBRERE C DA
EHEZEEREMADRREER
oh R

s MERBEHENEEKENE  HE
R BREHRBAE - FHEEE
DERFELHEEEZABRERE
AR B RERID

Other segment information Hity EEHR
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-E-_—_F+-A=+—HLFE
Hotel Securities
operations trading  Unallocated Consolidated
BELE EHEE AOE o)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET FET THET
Amounts included in the measure of segment  FTENEEEXDEEER T
loss or segment assets: AZ A
Addition to property, plant and equipment RENE - BEREE 472 - - a7
Addition to right-of-use assets NERRREEAE 504 - - 504
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #1% - SRR iE 2T E 12,341 - - 12,341
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEEZNE 858 - - 858

WERSHBERARAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e RS R AR ‘E

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. KENH®E)
Other segment information (CONTINUED) Hivy BER (2
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE—ZT-—F+-A=+—HItFE
Hotel Securities
operations trading Unallocated  Consolidated
B F5EE Fv e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAET FAT
Amounts included in the measure of segment  FENBEER S BEAER
loss or segment assets: AZFHE -
Addition to property, plant and equipment ERE- TS E T 541 = = 541
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #1% « 2R REITE 28,984 - - 28,984
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEECTE 410 = 1,399 1,809
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BEREEZ
equipment Ei 5 - - 5
Geographical information I8 & R
The Group's operations are located in the PRC. REBTERBELEELS

Information about the Group's revenue from external customers is

presented based on the location of operations. Information about the

Group’s non-current assets is presented based on the geographical

location of the assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - -~ +_-_A=+—HItFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. LEDE®)
Geographical information (CONTINUED) b33 & R ()

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
REIMBEF ZBWA FRBEE
2022 2021 2022 2021

B F T B —T-—%F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T THT FHET BT

Hotel operations B R T
— The PRC — R 53,241 79,067 181,789 218,818
Information about major customers FRFEEFZEH
No single customer contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the REEFE - WEE(E-RFAERK
Group for both years. MEREE B ZFEB10% °
7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 7. HAWA - W REEFE
2022 2021
Continuing operations BEEEER —EBC-CfF —E-—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET F&T
Gain/(loss) from changes in fair value of BiRBEREATFEENEZE/R
financial assets at fair value through profit BEZNFHEEE
or loss wF(E1R) - 20
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) SNEN (K518 )55 925 (8)
Interest income on bank deposits HRITIFRZ F BN 17,253 20,368
Other services income E A ARFS YA - 6,500
Sundry income IR 3,032 1,287
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEE B REHEEE
equipment - (5)
21,210 28,162
REBBREZHEEZRERAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE SRR MR

8. FINANCE COSTS BhE R AN
2022 2021
—EBC-CF —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBBEZNE 61 1,680
Interest on interest-bearing borrowing FFEEEZHE 3,300 1,650
3,361 3,330
9. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE Fﬁ%ﬁ(}ﬁﬁ%)/ﬁ-ﬁi‘i
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Current tax: BVEATRIE -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax BT ZEFTISHL - =
PRC withholding tax FEITEHRE - =
Over provision in prior years: B FEBRRRE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax Bl SRS (53) =
Deferred tax: RIERTIE -
Current year (note 26) AEE (fFE26) (5,500) 22
(5,553) 22
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9.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The
Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which
introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed
into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day.
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million
of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%,
and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits
of group entities not qualifying for the two- tiered profits tax rates

regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount involved
upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit
for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been made as the Group
has no assessable profit arising in Hong Kong for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law")
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

9.

e SRR MR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

9. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

The tax (credit)/expense for the year can be reconciled to the loss

before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

™

9. FI8H(ER), FX @)

AFRZRRER) T A ErAEE
Ko H At 2 T U 2 5% 2 B T A S 48 4 R

2022 2021

—E- 8 —E-—%F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Loss before tax BRI RIS 18 (30,985) (38,248)

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 25% B TSR 25% T B 2 B

(Note) B (KI3E) (7.746) (9,562)
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries REAMREER S E 2 B AT

operating in other jurisdictions PR NEb RS0} -7 2,193 10,484

Underprovision in prior years BEFERBTR - (900)

Income tax expense/(credit) for the year RFFEZHBRAS (EE) (5,553) 22

Note: The domestic tax rate (which is the PRC Enterprise Income Tax BiE -

rate) in the jurisdiction where the operation of the Group is

substantially based is used.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

10. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 10. FREE
Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting): FREIBEMBR(GTA) TFIEE -
2022 2021
—E- 8 —E-—4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET F&T
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — #3 - # 25 & RGBT E 12,341 28,984
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETNE 858 1,809
Total depreciation mEssE 13,199 30,793
Auditor’s remuneration 2% EREM BN & 1,500 1,435
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense ERRAX 2 FERA 8,602 8,945
Employee benefits expenses EERAMXZ 27,381 29,925
Gross rental income from investment properties REWEBHES WAL 2
less negligible outgoings (included in revenue) x84 (GF AUA) (11,652) (25,237)
Hotel management fee HEERE - 6,500
REBBREZHEEZRERAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE - - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

11.DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 11.EERITHRATMES

EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed RIBER TR REER HEHHER
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the Hong Kong RNEEEZRITRAHEMESIT

Companies Ordinance, is as follow:

Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-_ZE__F+-A=1+—HLFE

Directors’  Salaries and Retirement

fees other benefits benefits Total
5ER
Esne 2t ER RINER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THERT TET THERT
Executive directors WIES
Mr. Tam Chung Sun (note b) EMg s A (Fizth) 120 - - 120
Mr. Lai Tsz Wah* PEFEEL AL 1,405 - 15 1,420
Mr. Liu Hao (note a) 245 £ (Hita) 21 - - 21
Mr. Ho Chuk Man, James BEe %S 712 - 18 730
Mr. Tsang Ming To BEELE 124 - - 124
Sub-total Nt 2,382 - 33 2,415
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their FAMITEEME BN KR EREEAR
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the RIRAEE 2 EPTRME Z AR -

Company and the Group.
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e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - -~ +_-_A=+—HItFE

11.DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 11.EENTHARMHME @
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Directors'’  Salaries and Retirement

fees other benefits benefits Total
FeR
Esne HitEH RINER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET TET THERT
Independent non-executive directors BUFRTES
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva BEIEE 40 - - 40
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert ERELAE 140 - - 140
Mr. Sin Chi Fai KEBEE 86 - - 86
Mr. Chen Zeng Guang BRI RS 73 - - 73
Mr. Tong Wing Chi BKBEE 28 - - 28
Mr. Wan Kwun Lun BT A 21 - - 21
Sub-total iy 388 - - 388
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above FABSIEMITE S S BN R S T
were for their services as directors of the Company. RABIESRME 2 R -
HK$'000
FHET
Total #Et 2,803
REERZNEEZERERAE
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RE SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

11.DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 11. EBR{THAZME @
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE_Z-_—F+_-_A=+—HILFE
Directors' Salaries and Retirement
fees  other benefits benefits Total
ek
EE Yok HibigH RINVET w5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAL TET THET
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Tam Chung Sun (note b) FELSE A (Hi3ED) 120 = = 120
Mr. Lai Tsz Wah* BB 1,680 - 18 1,698
Mr. Liu Hao (note a) Bk (fita) 120 = = 120
Sub-total Nt 1,920 - 18 1,938

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the

Company and the Group.
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e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - -~ +_-_A=+—HItFE

11.DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 11.EENTHARMHME @
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Directors’ Salaries and Retirement
fees  other benefits benefits Total
ek
EEES H A AE R RIRER #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TET AT
Independent non-executive directors BUFRTES
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva BETLLE 130 = = 130
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert BB LA 180 - - 180
Mr. Sin Chi Fai hEBEE 100 - - 100
Sub-total INaT 410 - - 410
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above B IEMITE SIS BN R S T
were for their services as directors of the Company. NARIEEIREZ IR -
HK$'000
FHET
Total @t 2,348
REBBEEHEZRARATF
2022 4R 1 3 5
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e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE - - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

11.DIRECTORS’" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@) Appointed with effect from 24 August 2020 and resigned with
effect from 3 March 2022.

(b)  Appointed with effect from 19 October 2020.

* Mr. Lai Tsz Wah is also the chief executive of the Company and his
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by

him as the chief executive.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors as
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office as a director in connection with the management of
the affairs of any member of the Group for years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021.

No significant transaction, arrangement and contract in relation to the
Group business to which the Company was a party and in which the
directors of the Company and the directors’ connected party had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly subsisted at the end of

the both years or at any time during the both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included
one director (2021: one director), details of whose remuneration are
set out in note 11 above. Details of the remuneration for the year

of the remaining four (2021: four) highest paid employees who are

12. EfVESHFMA L

FAXKELNGEEHFMALERE—2E
BT —F: —REF) HMaF
BER LM - FgpmE(—T - —
F OB RFEEHIEARRBITHREH

neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

ZEREEMER Z N FEFHMABIT

2022 2021

—E- 8 —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

Salaries and other benefits e hEAMmER 3,952 2,698
Retirement benefits RIREA 68 72
4,020 2,770

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the directors

MeBATHEZYFARREEZRS

of the Company whose remuneration fell within the following bands is FEB AZNT ¢
as follows:
2022 2021
—E-CHF —E-—%F
Number of Number of
employee employee
EEAH BB A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 221,000,000/ 7T 4 4

No emoluments were paid by the Group to these individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of any office in connection with the management of the affairs of

any member of the Group for both years.

RREFE  AEBEYEREREAREE
Al pX 8 A B B I A 7% A £ S A B
SERMAKIMAREE 2 1% 2 RE)HAF
RRER . (E -

AEBRRHRERERAR
2022 5K
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e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE - - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

13. DIVIDENDS

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil) nor has

any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting period.

14. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable to

owners of the Company is based on the following data:

13. RE
ARNBEETERREHE_T-_—F
T A=+ BLFENRE(ZT=—
F o) AREHEREITT BERT
AR, o

14. BRREBE

AR A SRR RIS T
BB -

2022 2021
—EC-CfF —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FiIT
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the ~ FR{EstEERERL#FEE 2
Company for the purpose of calculating basic AR RIEHB AEIGAREE
and diluted loss per share 518 (23,455) (33,410)
Number of shares v |
2022 2021
—E- 8 —E-—fF

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for FI{EsTESIREAR R ESEEE 2

the purpose of calculating basic and diluted =l R R aE =

loss per share

The computation of diluted loss per share for years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021 does not assume the exercise of the
Company’s share options since their assumed exercise would result in

decrease in loss per share.
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e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - -~ +_-_A=+—HItFE
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y03 -« HEBI N5 1l

Office
Furniture equipment
Hotel Leasehold and Motor and

properties improvements fixtures Vehicles machinery Total
HE B BOERE

EENE NELE R%E RE R#E &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TAT TAT TAT TATT

CosT BA
At 1January 2021 R-E-—%-F-H 473,452 116,863 14,545 1,280 3,713 609,853
Transfer =t -
Additions RE - 317 24 - - 541
Disposals HE - (390) (175) - - (1,006)
Exchange adjustments fE 5% 15,200 2,524 400 40 92 18,256
At 31 December 2021 RZZZ—F+-A=1—H 488,652 119,314 14,994 1,320 3,805 628,085
Transfer =24 - - - - - -
Additions BE - 283 189 - - 47
Disposals HE - (569) (437) - - (1,006)
Exchange adjustments B 5 AR 9216 1312 533 - - 11,061
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZF+-A=1-H 497,868 120,340 15,279 1,320 3,805 638,612
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION REHE
At 1January 2021 R-E-—%-F—-H 271,650 109,637 12,452 1112 3,006 397,857
Provided for the year REERE 26,409 1,600 729 99 147 28,984
Eliminated on disposals HERHR - (390) (170) - - (560)
Exchange adjustments & 5% 9,001 2,347 350 38 75 11,811
At 31 December 2021 RZZZ—5+ZA=1—H 307,060 113,194 13,361 1,249 3,228 438,092
Provided for the year REFRE 10,871 916 436 51 67 12,341
Eliminated on disposals HERHR - (490) (350) - - (840)
Exchange adjustments B 6,677 830 134 - 48 7,688
At 31 December 2022 RWZZEZ=F+-A=1—H 324,607 114,450 13,581 1,300 3,343 457,281
CARRYING AMOUNTS BHE
At 31 December 2022 RIBZZH+ZH=+-H 173,261 5,890 1,698 20 462 181,331
At 31 December 2021 RZE-_-5+-A=1-H 181,592 6,120 1,633 71 577 189,993
REBBREZHEEZRERAA
2022 5K 1 3 9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on

a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Hotel properties (comprising  Over the shorter of the term of lease

land and buildings)

co-operative periods

Leasehold improvements

lease, or 5 to 10 years
10% to 20%
8',% to 20%

Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
Office equipment and 20%

machinery

Notes:

(@ Included in the hotel properties is a hotel property with a carrying
value of HK$86,404,000 (2021: HK$89,735,000), net of accumulated
impairment loss of HK$6,322,000 (2021: HK$6,322,000) located
in Guangzhou (“Rosedale Guangzhou Hotel”). The Group holds
the land use rights and property right of the hotel property for a
term expiring in January 2037, under the name of Rosedale Hotel

Guangzhou Co., Ltd. (“Rosedale Guangzhou”).

Pursuant to a co-operative agreement (the “Co-operative
Agreement”) entered into between Allied Glory Investment Limited
(" Allied Glory”), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, and the minority shareholder (the “PRC Partner”)
of Rosedale Guangzhou, the co-operative period for Rosedale

Guangzhou is 50 years commencing from 15 January 1987.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Notes: (CONTINUED)

(a)

(CONTINUED)

Rosedale Guangzhou is a Sino-foreign co-operative joint venture
incorporated in the PRC and its major asset is Rosedale Guangzhou
Hotel, which it owns and operates. The land use and property rights
of Rosedale Guangzhou Hotel would be transferred to the PRC
Partner upon the completion of the co- operative period. Pursuant to
the approval issued by the Foreign Economic and Trade Commission,
Rosedale Guangzhou was granted an initial co-operative period
of 30 years and such approval also stated that, subject to the
satisfaction of certain conditions, the co-operative period could be
extended for a further period of time but not more than 20 years.
Rosedale Guangzhou was then granted a business licence with a
period of 30 years which expired on 15 January 2017. Upon expiry
of the business licence, the PRC Partner refused to cooperate with
Allied Glory to jointly apply for the extension of the business licence
to 15 January 2037.

Allied Glory, therefore, on 8 July 2016 applied to the China
International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission (the
"CIETAC") for an arbitral award (the “Arbitral Award”) to reinstate
the co-operative period of Rosedale Guangzhou to 50 years and
the PRC Partner to cooperate with Allied Glory to jointly apply to
relevant government authorities to extend the business licence of
Rosedale Guangzhou for a further period of 20 years.

On 3 May 2017, Allied Glory received the Arbitral Award issued by
the CIETAC pursuant to which the co-operative period for Rosedale
Guangzhou under the Co-operative Agreement shall be extended
until 15 January 2027 and the PRC Partner shall provide all necessary
assistance to Rosedale Guangzhou in the application process for
extending its business licence.

e SRR MR

15. ¥ - BIERFRE @)
MsE - (48)

(a)
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BEHRE —FRETZN20FH -
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KREEHARFREEAREHR=—F
=t¥—-HAthaR-

W A W
ik}

it - RN ZT—R"FEANBRF
BEBEHE S HhEEE ([PREERE
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SRE ) LS A 1EERIR1E 2= 504 37 25Kk
FRE BB E A VLR MR RI BT i
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Notes: (CONTINUED)
(@) (CONTINUED)

The Arbitral Award, being a final award, took effect on the date
of issue and is legally binding on all parties to the arbitration. The
PRC Partner had, however, refused and/or failed to cooperate with
Allied Glory to apply for such extension. Allied Glory then submitted
an application to Guangzhou Intermediate People’s Court (the
“Intermediate Court”) for enforcement of the Arbitral Award and
the application was accepted by the Intermediate Court in July 2017.
The Intermediate Court directed such application to Guangzhou
Haizhu Court which subsequently issued an execution order (the
“Execution Order”) to Bureau of Guangzhou Haizhu Industry and
Information Technology (& /N 1/ 2k [& BH% T ¥ B 5 M {5 BALB)
and Bureau of Guangzhou Haizhu Market and Quality Supervision
(BENMNMBHEMSMNESEEERER) on 14 September 2017
enabling Allied Glory to apply for the relevant business licence. On
30 November 2017, the Execution Order was suspended due to the
fact that, based on the reply from the Bureau of Guangzhou Haizhu
Market and Quality Supervision, the unilateral application for the
extension of the business licence could not be proceeded as it is
subject to further re-submission with relevant extension documents.

On 18 July 2019, the business licence of Rosedale Guangzhou which
expired on 15 January 2017 was renewed and the operating period
of Rosedale Guangzhou was extended to 15 January 2027.

(b) Included in the hotel properties in the PRC is a hotel property
with a carrying value of HK$86,857,000 (2021: HK$91,857,000),
net of accumulated impairment loss of HK$34,469,000 (2021:
HK$34,469,000), situated in Shenyang. The Group holds the land use
rights and property right of the hotel property for a term expiring on
28 April 2046.

Impairment assessment

The Group incurred operating losses in its hotel operations segment
in the PRC, and there were certain adverse changes in the market
and economic environment in particular the effect from COVID-19
pandemic in the PRC in which the hotel operations of the Group are

located.

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no impairment

loss was made as no impairment indicator was identified.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE-ASSETS 16. EFAEERE

Leased
properties
HEWE
HK$'000
FAT
COST XA
At 1 January 2021 R-ZE-—fF—H—H 5,390
Expiration of lease contract HEELOER -
Exchange adjustments PE 5 AR 34
At 31 December 2021 RZB-—F+-A=+—H 5,424
Addition NE 504
At 31 December 2022 R-E-_—#+-_HA=+—H 5,928
Depreciation and impairment loss MEREESR
At 1 January 2021 RZE-—5F—H—H 2,781
Provided for the year REEEME 1,809
Expiration of lease contract HEEHEmM 22
Exchange adjustments P A% -
At 31 December 2021 N_E—_—F+-_A=+—H 4,612
Provided for the year REEEME 858
At 31 December 2022 WR-ZB-_—_F+-_HA=+—H 5,470
Carrying value BREE
At 31 December 2022 R-ZB-=f+=A=+—H 458
At 31 December 2021 R-Z_—F+-A=+—H 812
2022 2021
—EC-CHF —E-—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
Total cash outflow for leases HEZ R MLER 426 1,778

REEBREZNEZREBMAT
20226 3R
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16. RIGHT-OF-USE-ASSETS (CONTINUED)

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group leases
various offices, warehouses and hotel property for its operations.
Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of one to five years.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term
and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the period for

which the contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several hotel properties where its hotel
operations are primarily located. The Group is the registered owner
of these property interests, including the underlying leasehold lands.
Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire these property
interests. The leasehold land components of these owned properties
are presented separately only if the payments made can be allocated

reliably.

On 31 December 2020, the lease on the hotel property in Hong
Kong had been expired. Accordingly the right-of-use assets as at 31
December 2022 and 2021 principally represented the lease of office

premise in Hong Kong.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of HK$530,000 are recognised with related
right-of-use assets of HK$458,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2021:
lease liabilities of HK$956,000 and related right-of-use assets of
HK$812,000). The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing

purposes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

17. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

17. ZBBEERNFEETEZ

PROFIT OR LOSS THEE
2022 2021
e —E-—%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT T
Unlisted JEET
— Equity investment —[RERE - 6,013

The above unlisted equity investment represent the Group's equity
interest in a private entity established in PRC, BN MHBLMEHEREE
AT ("BEER").

The directors of the Company assessed whether the Group has control
over ¥ & based on whether the Group has the practical ability to
direct the relevant activities of ZBE /& unilaterally. After assessment,
the directors of the Company concluded that the Group does not

have control over #2235

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group disposed of
the entire equity interest of #1E # /& to an independent third party
for cash consideration of HK$4,451,000 with loss on disposal of
HK$1,562,000 recorded to the profit and loss for the year ended 31
December 2022.

LatE ERBREREREARER —EP
RIZZFANBREMNTBECEERER
RA([BEER )P 2 BHE -

ARBEEREAEERTERENES
R NEERRNBEES A NEEZ
DHRLBRFBEHIE - LHER - K
RAEENRERAEEHBERRLE
PRI o

BE-_E-__—F+-_A=+—HIFE "
ANE B DA & A B 4,451,000/% 7T [/ %8 3L
FEZFHEDLERNDIMRE  HE
E5181,562,000 8 Tt A ZE =S ==
+ZA=+—HILFEHER -

REEBREZNEZREBMAT
20226 3R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=y ﬁ%i&%ﬁﬁ%

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REW

HK$'000
Fi&T
Fair value AEEE
At 1 January 2021 RZZE=——F—HF—H 55,000
Exchange adjustments bE 5 A% 483
Net decrease in fair value recognised in profit PIBREERZ A EERDFRE
or loss (33,483)
At 31 December 2021 RZZE_—F+-A=+—H 22,000
Exchange adjustments M W R B -
Net decrease in fair value recognised in profit RERERZ AT EBERDFE
or loss (22,000)

At 31 December 2022

The Group's investment properties represent a completed complex
for commercial use in the PRC. The Group holds the property interest
under operating lease to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.
Accordingly, the property interest held under operating lease is
measured using the fair value model and is classified and accounted

for as investment properties.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties as at 31 December
2022 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out by

management.

The fair value as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 was determined
based on the income capitalisation approach, where the market
rentals of all lettable units of the properties are assessed by reference
to the rentals achieved in the lettable units of the properties as well
as other lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood. There has

been no change from the valuation approach used in the prior year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use

of the properties is their current use.

18. BREW* (®)

ISEREERYE PN LTI/ ES
ZERANRERZR/EER AR

Relationship of
Valuation unobservable inputs to
Fair Value hierarchy Fair value approach Unobservable inputs Significant inputs fair value
DYEEER AVERE fhER % EEBEZRAHE EERAEE EEERG A HEH
2022 2021
—B-CE —Eo-F
HK$000 HK$'000
TR TEL
Level 3 - 22,000  Income Monthly market rent N/A An increase in the market
(note 2) capitalisation taking into account the rent used would result in
differences in location, an increase in fair value,
and individual factors, and vice versa.
such as frontage and
size, between the
comparables and the
property
Capitalisation rates (note 1) N/A An increase in the
taking into account capitalisation rate used
the capitalisation of would result in an
rental income potential, decrease
nature of the property, in fair value, and vice
and prevailing market Versa.
condition
=R - YaERE  BATSRS (R A FrEmERSLN -
(WE2) SLRMERME 2 SEYATEESEM
B RIERIAR(HI0F RZI%
BRANEER)
B & (ke TER FAERREM -
MNERERGARNE - ) SEYATEERD
FHERBIMR) RZI%

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value hierarchy
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Notes:

1. The capitalisation rate used in the estimation of fair value of the

properties principally represented the property yield rate as at 31

December 2021.

B2 -2 -GN _ZT-_ZF+_-A8
Zt—HULEFERWESE A K #EHAFE
EEBRIE=M -

G
1. EHDEATFEEFAZANCEEE

RER=ZT=—F = A=r=H 2%
Fyank o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (CONTINUED)

18. REM* (®)

BsE - (%)

2. In the opinion of directors, full impairment made for the year 2.
ended 31 December 2022 was mainly because the investment
properties which were held under an operating lease arrangement
to earn rental income and/or capital appreciation, which is expired
in October 2023 and no written extension agreement has been
reached between the Company and the landlord up to the end of
the reporting period. With respect to the fair value measurement
of the investment properties (which comes to breakeven scenario)
as at 31 December 2022, management has considered the factors

including but not limit to the followings:

(i)  Expected rental income to be received subsequent to the year

end to the expiry date;

(i)  Expected operating running cost;

(i)  Expected reinstatement cost when hand over to the landlord;

and

(iv)  Zero discount rate adopted due to short period of time of the

remaining lease period.

19. INVENTORIES

Inventories represent food and beverage, consumables and other
goods of hotel which are to be utilised in the ordinary course of /4

operations and are carried at cost.

EERAR BE-T=-=ZF+=A
=t HIFERERETZRAAR
BREMETHFEIREMEURER
HEWARREKREE  ZIREY
¥R =F+ARE  BEE®RE
HASR - AR B M RIER E TR
ik o R ZZEZ—F+=-A=+—H
HEMENAABENE(BEBTEE
W) BEEDEEEEERERAT
FSESE

(i) BRMEFREZIHIAZEEEDH
HEUWA

(i) FREBEEMA
(i) BRAGHETEHOEBIRERL

53
vy BRFSEEHRE  WRAT
i o
19. ZE
FEREOER—REEBEPHAHZE

HEmREMER - AT

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. &5 R H At EWERRX
At 31 December
R+=—A=+—8
2022 2021
—EC-8F T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables B SRR
— contracts with customers —HEFPAA 756 519
— operating lease receivables —EHERIKEIR 5 241
761 760
Other receivables H b FEUER TR 35,988 65,629
Less: Impairment losses recognised W ANFERRZBERSSE
for the year - _
35,988 65,629
Rental and utility deposits MekKEES 1,046 1,231
Prepayments and other deposits TARTRRIE R EAb RS 2,060 2,423
Total trade and other receivables B 5 M E AR TR AR EE 39,855 70,043
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables presented based

on the invoice dates.

%-?/—\ a1 i%i&%ffﬁ éI

0. BE5 N H AU ERTR (4

U AE BEREREER B2 2 5%
WA -

2022 2021

—E-_F T4

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHERT FAT

0-30 days 0£30H 601 749
31 to 60 days 31260H 99 5
61 to 90 days 61290H 38 6
Over 90 days #83E90H 23 -
761 760

The Group generally grants credit period up to 30 days to its

customers upon issuance of invoice.

At 31 December 2022, included in the Group’s trade receivables
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$10,000
(2021: HK$11,000) which are past due as at the reporting date. Out
of the past due balances, HK$Nil (2021: HK$Nil) has been past due 90
days or more and is not considered as in default since the Group has

reasonable information to support the amounts are fully recoverable.

At 31 December 2021, included in other receivable was unsecured
loan to ¥ 2 ¥ & of HK$39,631,000, which was interest-bearing at

5% per annum and was settled during the year ended 31 December

2022.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables are

set out in note 33(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

AEE-RETEPRRA/EREHRI0
EZE%EE?J%
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e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE - - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

21. IRITER KRB S

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from 0.01% IRITHEBRIE M B FNE0.01%E2.02%
10 2.02% (2021: 0.01% to 2.02%) per annum. (CE-—F :0.01%E2.02%)5 8 °

21. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

RITABRRER G Z FITEN RS M 155

Details of impairment assessment of bank balances are set out in note

33(b) to the consolidated financial statements. FFFE33(b) ©
22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22. B N HMEIRR
2022 2021
—E- 8 —E-—fF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Trade payables BB ENSIRR 125 2,737
Other payables: HAth PEATRRRX

Deposit received R 365 5,889
Accrued expenses FEETH - 13,341
Other tax payables E b T IE - 805
Other payables E At fERTARTR 10,000 23,787
10,365 43,822
10,490 46,559

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based
on the invoice date.

B I ENRFIZER B HSIR 2 R DM

m .

2022 2021

e —E-—4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FA&T

0-30 days 0&30H 125 1,123
31 to 60 days 31£60H - 542
61 to 90 days 61290H - 187
Over 90 days FBIE90H - 885
125 2,737

The credit period on purchases of goods ranged from 30 to 60 days. BEZRESNT308E60H -
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23.

24,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWING

The interest-bearing borrowing at 31 December 2022 represents
a borrowing from a financial institution with principal balance of
HK$22,000,000 (2020: HK$22,000,000), carries fixed interest at 15%
(2021:

bearing borrowing is secured by the Group’s interests over certain

15%) per annum and repayable within one year. The interest-

subsidiaries.

LEASE LIABILITIES

Disclosures of revenue-related items:

23.

24,

%-?/—\ a1 i%%&%ffﬁ *I

STEEE

RZZEZ—F+=_A=+—HZHBERE
ERRA—ReMBEEZEBE K&
4 # 522,000,000 L (Z T T F ¢
zawqwm%m)'&ﬁﬁwzw%(:r

——F :15%)AEEEMNE - BE—F
NEE - ZAt REERASEES THE

NA]Z s FEAR o

*ﬂ 1= % 1EE

,\/\

Wz ARATR B RO R

2022 2021
—EC-CF T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Lease liabilities payable: ENHEEAE
Within one year —F R 356 956
Within a period of more than one year —F LA L ETBBRE 2 BEA
but not exceeding two years 174 —
530 956
Less: Amount due for settlement within B 1218 B B HAEEROE
12 months shown under current liabilities (RmBEETYIR) (356) (956)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 1218 A& B BB E K08
shown under non-current liabilities (RIERBBETYIR) 174 -

At 31 December 2022, the weighted average incremental borrowing
rate applied on the calculation of present value of lease liabilities was
5.63% per annum (2021: 5.63%).

The Group uses the lessee’s incremental borrowing rates to discount
future lease payments since interest rates implicit in the leases are not
readily determinable. In determining the discounts rates for its leases,
the Group refers to a rate that is readily observable as the starting
point and then applies judgement and adjusts such observable rate to

determine the incremental borrowing rate.

NZZE_—_F+-A=+—8 " YtZEH
EaEREMERMINEFEEERTF
EAEEF5.63%(ZE=—F :563%) °

HREETRENNXBEUEE - ~AEH

ERAEANEEBEERNRRERREER
B REEMEMBRERE  AEEZ2EF
HEBRZNEERERS - BRREZA
BRI RERAE R ARKETIREEE
Mo

BERZHERRERAT
2022F %,
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE - - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 25. 58 E

At 31 December

®+=A=+-—H
2022 2021
—E-CF T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Hotel rooms BIERE 638 654
Food and beverage BER 11 6
649 660
At 1 January 2021 contract liability accounted to HK$Nil. RZZE-_—F—H—H 60H8EA

1,883,000/ 7T ©

The following table shows the amount of the revenue recognised in TRINTHREAENEBEERRZBAS
relation to the carried-forward contract liabilities. 2 o
Hotel Food and
rooms beverage
BERE B8R
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FT
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-ZE—_—_f+=-H=+—H
LFE
Revenue recognised that was included EHABTAFVENERE
in the contract liability balance at the i el VN
beginning of the year - 14
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-—s-_—-H#+=-A=+—H
IHFE
Revenue recognised that was included ERRTAFIENEE
in the contract liability balance at the i ol VN
beginning of the year 154 15
As at 31 December 2022, the amounts of unsatisfied obligations in R-IBE-—F+-_A=Z+—H BHEEE
relation to the contracts of hotel rooms and food and beverage are EMERAEHNBBNRBITEBNSER
expected to be recognised as revenue within one year. T —F AR BN
152 GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

26. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 26. ELEBIEEE
The following is the major deferred tax liabilities recognised and INTARRAEERBTFERRZEZR
movements thereon during the current and prior years: EHEEBAREES
Accelerated tax
depreciation
IEBIETE
HK$'000
FAET
At 1 January 2021 R —F—H—H 24,033
Exchange adjustments PE 5 SR (3,346)
Credit to profit or loss (note 9) B (FFFE9) 22
At 31 December 2021 and at 1 January 2022 RZZE_—F+=-A=+—80K
W_ZE-—%—HF—H 20,709
Exchange adjustments ME 5 AR 358
Charge to profit or loss (note 9) a8 IR (FTEE9) (5,500)
At 31 December 2022 HR-BE-_—_F+=-A=+—H 15,567

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$631,445,000 (2021: HK$631,445,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of such losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Included in unused tax losses are losses of
approximately HK$101,621,000 (2021: HK$102,037,000) with expiry

dates as disclosed in the following table. Other losses maybe carried

forward indefinitely.

RS B R - NEE 2 REVB RS
B4 /631,445,000 L (== —F ¢
631,445,000 7T ) + AT FA{E K 88 7R 2K 4
Bl o ARAREETEF BB ZHEFRIR - i
WERZEEERREEHBEEE - K
PAMEEEREIHAETRER
E5#849102,037,0008 L (Z T = —F ¢
102,037,000/ 7T) © H i &518 7] M R B 45
B2 o

REBRZNEZRERDF
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153



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE - - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

26. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 26. EEBIEE B (@)
2022 2021
—E- 8 T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
2022 —E-—F - 416
2023 —E-=4F 33,993 33,993
2024 ZEZF 16,930 16,930
2025 —E-FRF 34,526 34,526
2026 —ERF 16,172 16,172
2027 ke el o S - =
101,621 102,037
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had deductible RMEHR  XEBEERIREMELTF
temporary difference in relation to the loss on fair value change of BEEZEHEBNAIINHERERE - ART
investment properties. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in N R B8 2 A AT A0 B 2= 5 A DA SR BH B AR
relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not probable Fim Al - Bt mp ez E e I R £ R
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible HRBELEHIEEE -

temporary differences can be utilised.

27. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY 27. RATIRAN
Number of Share
shares capital
RAEE [
HK$'000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREE.0E L LAk
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 RZE_—F—H—H"
and 2022 TR FRTTCF
+=-A=+—H 150,000,000,000 1,500,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAE :
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 WZZEZ—F—H—H"
and 2022 R FRITCCF
+=-A=1+—8 789,211,046 7,892
154 GREATER BAY AREA DYNAMIC GROWTH HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on
30 May 2013 which is valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 3 June 2013 (the date on which the last condition
to the Scheme was satisfied) until 2 June 2023, subject to early
termination by the Company in general meeting or by its board of

directors.

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Company to grant
options to subscribe for shares of the Company (“Options”) to
any eligible employee (including executive directors) and any non-
executive director of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
or any entity in which the Group holds an equity interest (“Invested
Entity”), any supplier of goods or services to the Group or any
Invested Entity, any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity, any
consultant, adviser, manager, officer and entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the Group or any
Invested Entity, and any shareholder or any member of the Group who
has contributed to the business of the Group or any Invested Entity
or any holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity (the “Participant”), as incentives or rewards for

their contributions or potential contribution to the Group.

The total number of shares in respect of which Options may be
granted under the Scheme and any other schemes of the Company
is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue at the date of adoption of the Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate
Limit”) unless the Company obtains an approval from shareholders
in a general meeting to refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit provided
that the Scheme Mandate Limit so refreshed does not exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of approval of
refreshment by its shareholders. Nevertheless, the maximum number
of shares of the Company which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding Options granted and not yet exercised under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed

30% of the issued shares of the Company from time to time.

28. IR KRR S

RRAFURSEE 2 BRE S

ARARRZBE-—=FARA=TRHEMHT —
R ERE([5T8]) R =T —=
FRAZH Gz R&—BGMHERZ
BEDRFNOFAERE_—ZE_=F1A
ZHIE HEARBERRAE LHES
SRR -

I ERA AR EAKEEL AR
REBEEBZ A RRIREMB AR ([ARE
B AREBERA R 2 EAER
(REER ZEMAERREE (BHEH
TER) REMFATES - ERAAE
M T E B e m kRS 2 e
B AREREAREERZEFNES
AR B SR E BB M - 3%
SEMBRIE ZEAER - FRA &
2 ITRABNER - YAKE TR
BEREBIEFLERMZAKBEAIRR
AR B A RIS AR S BUERIA B A A=
EREBEBMBTENER 2EMNRHE
A([28E ) E T RERE ([ REAE ) AR
BARREZ A AE SRR K B -

ARIRET I AR R EA A AT &I 7] 7%
HZ BTS2 IR BB TSEB
Rt 8 AR R E BTN 210%
([FHEIRERE ) - BRIFARAIEBER
RBIRAE LT T EIRERE - H
BRI E T 2 TR ER BTSRRI R
ERFEAARBEHETRNZ10% © &
Bt - RIBEF B RA R BHE R E A
REETEIIR K i RTT 2 PTG P A 1T
ERATFERTRARAZESROBE T
BHRBARRATREEITRNZ30% °

EERZNERRERLF

2022F %,

155



156

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company (CONTINUED)

The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which
Options granted and may be granted to any Participant in aggregate
in any 12-month period up to and including the date of such grant is
not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue,
without prior approval from its shareholders in general meeting with
such Participant and his/her associates (as defined in the Listing rules)

abstaining from voting.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days from the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1. Options may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time during a period
as the board of directors may in its absolute discretion determine
which shall not be more than 10 years from the date of grant and
subject to the provisions of early termination thereof and the board
of directors may provide restrictions on the exercise of an Option. The
exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company, and will
not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of grant, (ii) the average closing price of the shares
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s share on the date of grant.

At 31 December 2022, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Scheme was nil (2021: 28,000,000), representing nil (2021: 3.5%) of

the shares of the Company in issue at that date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE - - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 28. UBRRFXZ @)

(CONTINUED)
Equity-settled share option scheme of the KATURAGEE 2 BRESE
Company (CONTINUED) (#%)
Details of specific categories of options are as follows: BT ERFBOT
Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period Exercise price
BHAH BEEAH 1T TEE
24 April 2017 24 April 2017 24 April 2017 to 23 April 2022 HK$0.59
—ZE—+FMWA=+MA —E—+FMA=+MAH —E—tFMWA=Z+MHAE 0.597% 7T
T FMAZ+=H
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share TEREBEERDEENANFE RBAF
options held by eligible participants during the current and prior years: EFTRA A RHEARE 2 28 -
Outstanding Outstanding
at Lapsed at
1 January during 31 December
2022 the year 2022
R-ZB-—F
R-ZB-—F +=A=+—H
Categories of participants SEEER —HB—H FREM el RATE
Directors BE 1,500,000 (1,500,000) -
Employees and other eligible EEREMEERSEE
participants 26,500,000 (26,500,000) -
28,000,000 (28,000,000) -
Exercisable at the end of the RS BAIARAIATR
reporting period -
Weighted average exercise price  JI#EFHIT{EE(BT)
(HK$) 0.59 0.59 -

REBRZNEZRERDLA
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T _—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 28. UBRRFTXZ @)

(CONTINUED)
Equity-settled share option scheme of the KRB URAEE 2 BB ELE
Company (CONTINUED) (#%)
Outstanding Outstanding
at Lapsed at
1 January during 31 December
2021 the year 2021
R-B=-—%
R-B=—F +=A=+—H
Categories of participants SEEER —HB—H FREM e RATHE
Directors BE 1,500,000 = 1,500,000
Employees and other eligible EEREMEERSEE
participants 32,500,000 (6,000,000) 26,500,000
34,000,000 (6,000,000) 28,000,000
Exercisable at the end of the S BAIARAIATE
reporting period 28,000,000
Weighted average exercise price  JI#EFHIT{EE(BT)
(HK$) 0.59 0.59 0.59
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30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control
of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the

scheme, which contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the
government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are required to contribute
certain percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to

the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of HK$4,037,000 (2021:
HK$3,958,000) represents contributions paid/payable to these plans

by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group disposed of
Shropshire Property Limited to an independent third party for cash
consideration of HK$1 and a gain on disposal of HK$15,045,000
was recorded in the profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2021. The net liabilities of this subsidiary at the date of disposal was
HK$15,045,000.

29.

30.

BRI ETE

REBERMATESERKREBRILAHINE
RIERFE - A BIZEERAEEZE
ENF AEEHARFA - YHERAR
Hi o REBERIZAMEF KA Z5% MK
SEEREI MERTAFHRESE
2 -

AEETENBARZEES R EBT
B2 BZRAKEHEEIKE - ZEWE
RBRLFHIRAE T A2 L RR KRR
FHEIER . REAIREES - AKERLZ
BRARMET S —ERZEEDELRE

AR o

RIBmE P ER 2 #8%4,037,00078 7T
(ZZT——1% : 3,958,000/ 70 ) E AN EE

HEHE AT

REBEEZZT_—F+A=1+—HLEHF
B AEER—R2BIE=-STHERY
MEERRAR - BeRERVET IR
BE -+ -_A=+—HIEE
AR 18 & A 8% 15 & &R 15,045,000 7
7o B ARREE BN AEFER
15,045,000/ 7T °
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31. OPERATING LEASING ARRANGEMENTS 31. REHERH
The Group as lessor AEBEREHEA
The properties held by the Group which are for rental purposes have REERFEHEREZMEE S RIBARK
committed lessees for the next one and seven years respectively. — R FRFEME AL EE -

HHERK 2 REIRBENTNT

Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

2022 2021

—E-CE T4

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Within one year —FN 2,024 21,218
In the second year F_F - 18,622
In the third year B=F - 14,961
In the fourth year Euikes - 15,037
In the fifth year FRHE - 15,447
After five years hFE - 567
2,024 85,852

32. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 2. EXRAmET

REEz ERNER BB RAEEFERE
MER & ETE - BARREBEZEEA
B ) [RIS TR A AR R A 38 S oK B3
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year. SEERERRE FFEAER -

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will

be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to

4} HK E\\/

shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

160

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,

comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a semi-
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of management of the Group, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as issue of
debt.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

Categories of financial instruments

33. &2 T A
() €I EER

2022 2021
—E- T4
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets at amortised cost REEN AR R @ MEE 1,742,701 1,852,777
Financial assets at fair value through BEREREATEBTEZ
profit or loss SREE - 6,013
Financial liabilities -y =Ri
Amortised cost BESHR AR 490 39,865
Interest-bearing borrowing HEEE 22,000 22,000

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, investments held for trading, bank balances,
trade and other payables, interest— bearing borrowing and
lease liabilities. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management of the Group
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate

measures are implemented in a timely and effective manner.

(b) ¥BEBEEBEFEREE

FEENFTESRTAREZESRE
YRR - FHIEBERIRE - RITHE
&% BEH REMEMNER st EEE
MEEEE - SRITAZFBENRHERS
MIEERE - BREeR TARRBNRE
b B3R T 5 AR (B R A E
%) FERREABESER - B
B AN T P& K 32 B B 2 BUR B T
X o REBEREEE RERZER
B ARERIAR B RAMA T A E
EEEE

REEBREZNEZREBMAT
20226 3R
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

33. 2@ T B

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) M BEREBEEEEREKE
policies (CONTINUED) (#8)
Market risk 5B
(i)  Currency risk (i) EBExmEpE

(ii)

Neither subsidiaries of the Company nor the Company have
significant foreign currency sales, purchases or balances.

Therefore, the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk is

minimal.

Interest rate risk

RN )= NETEE RAN/NSI RS
MINEETTEAEERERE
RiEsR - Bt - REBAXZ
SNEE RN

(i) FIFEmbE

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in AEEHEBHETEBEEER
relation to fixed-rate interest-bearing borrowing and fixed- EEHEBGEEBENATEER

rate lease liabilities (see notes 23 and 24 for details). The
Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in

relation to variable-rate bank balances (see note 21 for

FIRER (BB LB 23R
24) o A % B VA G BT B3R
AREBEENRSRENEE

details). The Group currently does not have an interest rate b (GHERL2MME21) « A&

hedging policy. However, the management of the Group
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging

significant interest rate exposure should the need arises.

Total interest income from financial assets that are

measured at amortised cost is as follows:

B3R B0 R R ER R © A
- A B B R
% WHERRBERYAE
AFIRER -

BEHRANEZ CREEM
BHEFBWALT

2022 2021
—E-_—F T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHIT
Financial assets at amortised cost RG22 28
BE 17,253 20,368
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e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 33.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (CONTINUED)

Market risk (CONTINUED)
(ii) Interest rate risk (CONTINUED)

Interest expense on financial liabilities not measured at

@I B
b) BRERREEEERKE

(&)
5 E R (1)
(i) FEmpz (&)

WIEEBBRE AT EEFE
ZEMABZNEMAX

FVTPL:
2022 2021
—E-CHF —E-—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REEN AT E 2 2R
B8E& 1,650 1,650
Sensitivity analysis BRRZ T

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 25 basis point
(2021: 25 basis points) increase or decrease in non-fixed
interest rate bank balances represents management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest

rates.

If interest rates had been 25 basis points (2021: 25 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s pre-tax loss for the year ended 31
December 2022 would decrease/increase by HK$4,390,000
(2021: decrease/increase by HK$4,445,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its

non-fixed interest rate bank balances.

VAT 8RR E 2 A Th AR 5 45 HA
HEREE 2 M EERETE o RE
DT - DERERAREHER
MATTEZ SR TAREEFY
RITEE o FEEE R KRITA R
Z2BMEER(ZTZ—%F : 25
EEE) 2 msoRd - THER
B R K g DIR 2 A IREE)
Ve 2 7Tl -

THFIE £38, THE25mER (=
TZETF  25EES) - A
HEmEgusTg  IAXREE
HEZZ-_—F+ZA=+—
AIEFE 2 BRT A EE KSR
L /18 104,445,000 T ( —F
ZTF R H#8h05,033,000
BIT) o EBEREANEEREIE
B E I RIRITAERETE E 2 F
RER -

REBRZNEZRERDLA

2022 5K
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties
default on their contractual obligations resulting in financial
losses to the Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures are
primarily attributable to trade and other receivables, and bank
balances. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its financial

assets.

The Group performed impairment assessment for financial assets
under ECL model. Information about the Group’s credit risk
management, maximum credit risk exposures and the related

impairment assessment, if applicable, are summarised as below:

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from

contracts with customers

The Group applies monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group's credit risk is

significantly reduced.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for 100% (2021:
100%) of the total trade receivables as at 31 December 2022. In
order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group

sets credit limits and credit approvals.
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33. 2@ I B
b) I EEAREEEERKE

(#8)
= EmR R B E G

EERBEAEEHFIRESNE
FROEHASEEXYHERNAE
B ARENEERRIERARE
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BRTANRERESREEFRNE
Emg o

AEEREEREEBHBREETS
BEEREN G - ARAREEERR
REE - ZAEERRNAAREN
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BREE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

33. €I A
b) IERBREEEEREE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (CONTINUED)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from

contracts with customers (CONTINUED)

In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment under
ECL model on trade receivables individually and/or based on
provision matrix. Trade receivables with balances which are not
significant or not credit impaired are grouped under a provision

matrix, based on past due status.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
uses debtors’ aging to assess the impairment for its customers
in relation to its hotel operations because these customers
consist of a large number of small customers with common risk
characteristics that are representative of the customers’ abilities

to pay all amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms.

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
two-year observed default rates over the expected life of the
debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is

available without undue cost or effort.

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group
assessed the ECL for trade receivables were not significant and

thus no loss allowance was recognised.

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when
the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade receivables are
over two years past due, whichever occurs earlier. Nevertheless,
the Group will keep taking legal action against the debtors to

recover the amount due.

(&)
1= B3 Bk R 1B A1 ()

HEFZENELZE S BEWENR
BREE(E)

s REERBEEHEEEERRN
AR K, S ER BB IEE S B 5
WERRFETTRERHS - BHRLIFEX
FWBEERE 2 B HRYPIRTIRIE
By A (ERNE AR

ERAREEERBREERN D
7 5% [t LB I SE T8 2 R R IR AR
KRR AEPREER - RERZ
ERFPEEBEAEAR AREARETER
PNEP - ZEREBRAREPREAR
R 2 B2 B IR R RE )

TR R IR B E AR R TR 1]
HE St M R O R fFHSH
W EBATLREKALE AN
SRR ERHEL T o

REE_Z-_—_FR-_FT-_—F+=
A=+—BItFE A&EFTTES
FEMEBR A TR B BIE T EX -
LI S T R R R o

REERNB ERBRER AR
F 765 TR 6 e 3 4B 35 B U O] AT
B ABBE HEAWER P
5 FEWBR e B 6 LA £ (AR T 3%
EE/E)RMHE S RUBAERR - R
i - ANEE G EEREE ARIUER
TTEN AN Bl 78 BAROR

&
i T

B X5

REBEZNERRARDE
2022F 5

165



166

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (CONTINUED)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (CONTINUED)
Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the directors of the Company
make periodic individual assessment on the recoverability of
other receivables and deposits based on historical settlement
records, past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking

information.

Except for the above-mentioned credit-impaired debtor, the
directors of the Company believes that there is no significant
increase in credit risk of remaining amounts since initial
recognition and the Group assessed the ECL for the remaining
other receivables and deposits were insignificant based on 12m
ECL.

Bank balances

Credit risk on bank balances is limited because the counterparties
are reputable banks. For the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021, the Group performed impairment assessment on
bank balances and concluded that the probability of defaults
of the counterparty banks are insignificant and accordingly, no

allowance for credit losses is provided.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and

maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate

by the management to finance the Group’s operations and

mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual

maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn

up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities

based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required

to pay. Specifically, interest-bearing borrowing with repayment

on demand clause is included in the earliest time band regardless

of the probability of the exercise of rights by the lender.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

e SRR MR

33. &R T B
b) BRERREEEERKE

(%)

ERRPECRMRE  AEEERK
HFREPREEEHEANERER
REBZKY  RASERERNE
T WHERSRERBHZZE -

TRAJAKESRABEHR TAHE
HiER - TRIRBESBABZARRRA
RengR AR gREREEZ
RPAHMAER - AME @ 7] AR
BREFIGEFN BEREIIAREN
R M E B ERATTEER R

ZREFENERASRERE °

Liquidity table mBELH
Weighted Total
average  On demand contractual Total
interest  or less than Over 1-2 2-5 undiscounted carrying
rate 1year 1year years years  cash flow amount
METY  RERY KAREH
Filk4 15/ BR-F 1228 255 ReRBAR aRmE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TATL TET TETL TATL TATL
At31December2022 ~ RIZTZZF
tZA=1+-A
Trade and other payables &5 R EMEFEH - 10,490 - - - 10,490 10,490
Interest-bearing borrowing 5 8 £ & 15% 24,035 - - - 24,035 22,000
Lease liabilities REBE 5.63% 376 184 - - 560 530
34,901 184 - - 35,085 33,020
At31December2021  RZZEZ—F
TZA=1-H
Trade and other payables &5 R EMERERH - 46,559 - - - 46,559 46,559
Interest-bearing borrowing  Ff S5 E 15% 25,300 - - - 25,300 22,000
Lease liabilities HEGE 5.63% 1,010 - - - 1,010 956
72,869 - - - 72,869 69,515

EERZNERRERLF

20224 %R
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RE SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE - - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

34. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON CASH

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash and
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s

consolidated statement of cash flow as cash flows from financing

34. BRAREREZEIMER
METHELE2AEYE

TRHVBEREEDEE 2 AEHAER
8 BRASIIFRSEE - ARERD
EEzBEDNHERE LR RECERAR
KREREFERAEEZGARESRE
ROBERBETDREREZAE -

activities.
Interest
bearing Lease
borrowing liabilities Total
STEEE HEasE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET T FAET
(note 23) (note 24)
(fF5E23) (Mf7E24)
At 1 January 2021 R —F—H—H 22,000 2,734 24,734
Financing cash outflows RERE RN - (1,778) (1,778)
Interest expenses FEFMEZ 1,650 1,680 3,330
23,650 2,636 26,286
Non-cash transaction HEERH - - -
Other changes: HAb gt
Other payables HAbERERR (1,650) (1,680) (3,330)
At 1 January 2022 R-E-_—F—H—H 22,000 956 22,956
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

34. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON CASH

35.

(CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities (CONTINUED)

4. EBREREZBNIER )

BEEHELE 2REYHKR®

Interest
bearing Lease
borrowing liabilities Total
FEEE HESE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHTT FET FAxT
(note 23) (note 24)
(fF7E23) (Mf7E24)
Financing cash outflows BER SR - (426) (426)
Interest expenses FBEFx 3,300 61 3,361
25,300 591 25,891
Non-cash transaction FRERH - - -
Other changes: Hi 28 -
Other payables HAbFERTBRIR (3,300) 61) (3,361)
At 31 December 2022 RZT_—%F
+=—A=+—8H 22,000 530 22,530

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group did
not enter into transactions with related parties.

There were no outstanding balances with related parties at the end of

each reporting period.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management personnel, being the directors
of the Company, during the year is set out in note 11 to the

consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration of key management personnel is determined by
the remuneration committee of the Company having regard to the

performance of individuals and market trends.

5. EALRSG

RBE-Z-_—_FR-_ZF_—F+_H
=+—BLFEE  AREYEEBEAL
R 5 e

REREHF - WEEBEALZ BRE
B o
TREEABZHM

FAXTEEBRABAARBESR) ZHH
BN A MR -

FTEEEBEAEBNFIHARREHNEZES
LEBBARBERTIGEBAEET

REBBRE NEZRERAR
2022F 3R
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e SRR MR

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 36. A AR EEMB A RFE
THE COMPANY

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the Company BARREBRERSARTERE K EES
at the end of the reporting period are set out as below: BZMBRABFERNTX :
Place of Paid up
incorporation/ issued/registered Proportion of ownership interest Principal
Name of subsidiary registration capital held by the Company activities
WEARER HMAL B BRITHRZMER ARRAFEEERRLA TEEH
Directly Indirectly
=83 Rtk
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E_-f ~-—Z-—% CZEIZE —-T--&
% % % %
% % % %
Allied Glory Investment Limited  Hong Kong HK$2 - - 735 735 Investment holding
BRREERAF ) 2B BAER
Apex Quality Group Limited ~ The British Virgin United States dollars (“US$") - - 89.4 89.4  Investment holding
("Apex”) Islands (the “BVI") 5,548,172
Apex Quality Group Limited ~ EB&RREE 5,548,172 T REER
(T Apex]) ((RBERARES]) (EA)
HMH China Investments Bermuda Canadian dollars 1,152,913 - - 735 735  Investment holding
HMH China Investments BRE 1,152,91301% RARR
Lucky Million The BVI US$1 - - 89.4 89.4  Investment holding
Investments Limited
Lucky Million EBRARES (E BAER
Investments Limited
Rosedale Hotel Group The BVI Us$1 - - 89.4 89.4  Investment holding
REBEEEERAR ERERRES (E RERR
Rosedale Hotel Guangzhou The PRC US$11,500,000 - - 72.1 72.7  Hotel ownership and
Co., Ltd* operation in the
PRC
BMAEEEERAR i 11,500,000 7T RBEREREE
B
Rosedale Hotel The BVI Us$1 100 100 - - Investment holding
International Limited
Rosedale Hotel EBHARES (E3 REER
International Limited
Rosedale Hotel Management  Hong Kong HK$2 - - 89.4 89.4  Hotel management in
Limited Hong Kong
HEBEEEERAR B 25T REBBEER
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36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 36. KA TRIFEMB A FFHE @)
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Place of Paid up
incorporation/ issued/registered Proportion of ownership interest Principal
Name of subsidiary registration capital held by the Company activities
WEARER SRR B BRITHRERER ARRFEAERRLA TEXH
Directly Indirectly
EE Rtk
2022 2021 2022 2021
“Z--f -—Z--% ZBIZf —E-_-F
% % % %
% % % %
Rosedale Hotel Shenyang The PRC RMB168,000,000 - = 84.9 84.9  Hotel ownership and
Company Limited® operation in the
PRC
RBHBBEERA HE AE#168,000,0007T R EEE RS
BE
Rosedale Park Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - = - 89.4  Hotel operation in
Hong Kong
Rosedale Park Limited B 2T RERZEERE
Shenyang Hotel Holdings The BVI Us$100 - - 89.4 89.4  Investment holding
Limited
ABEERNERAT SRERARHE 100%7 REER
Shenyang Limited The BVI Us$1 - = 89.4 89.4  Investment holding
Shenyang Limited EERARES (E BEER
Success Billion Limited The BVI US$1 - - - 100 Trading of securities
in Hong Kong
Success Billion Limited RERBRES 1%L RERBEES
The Rosedale Luxury Hotel & ~ The PRC US$20,000,000 - - 100 100 Property investment
Suites Ltd.#* in the PRC
HEEX(LB)ARRA®  HE 20,000,000 7T RBEERE
*  This subsidiary is a Sino-foreign co-operative joint venture. Pursuant f ZMBRARR—RPINEIERERE -
to the Co-operative Agreement, upon the end of the co-operative BIEAEKEERE - RNEIFEEERAE
period, the rights and ownership of Rosedale Guangzhou Hotel will R BEINAREBE 2 A R B S
be transferred to the PRC Partner. BERBEBY -
#  These subsidiaries are wholly foreign-owned enterprises. " ZEMBARRINGEERE -
*  For identification purpose only * (=R
BERENEERERDLF
20225 8 171
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE - - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF  36.

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of

the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of

the year.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of

the Group that have material non-controlling interests:

Proportion of

AABEEMMEBRBFE @

EERR/LERMIARBZMBRRHA
KEZXEREEREATE - EFRR
MR B AR FEESRIBBNIT
£ o

FR - REEMNE QR ETEMERE
%o

BRRERFEREZZHEZEN
BT zHE

TREJIEAEAIER S 2 NEEIE
2EMBRRZHE

ownership interests Loss
Place of and voting rights allocated to Accumulated
incorporation/  Principal place  held by non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary establishment  of business interests interests interests
HR A FERBESE 2 HERE
WEARERE BRI B TREXBH RERREELE  SREFERESZER R FERES
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
S T B “T--F B —“T-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000
T FEL THET FET T FET
Apex and its subsidiaries ~ The BVI Hong Kong and
the PRC 10.60% 10.60% (1,977) (4,860) (174,277) 176,203
Apex & EL KB AR EBRARS BERTE

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group's
subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests is set out
below. The summarised financial information below represents

amounts before intragroup eliminations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - -~ +_-_A=+—HItFE

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 36. KA RIFEM B A FFHE @)
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that BEEARFERERZFEZEM
have material non-controlling interests (CONTINUED) BARz#FE®
Apex and its subsidiaries ApexREHE 2 &
2022 2021
—E- 8 —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHETT
Non-current assets FEMENEEE 127,856 182,652
Current assets MEEE 1,309,533 1,335,475
Non-current liabilities ERBBE (21,139) (22,574)
Current liabilities mEBaRE (10,824) (34,416)
1,405,426 1,461,137
Equity attributable to owners of the Company  ZANA BB AfEEHERE 1,284,934 1,284,934
Non-controlling interests of Apex ApexZ FEIERRE = 148,530 148,530
Non-controlling interests of Apex’s subsidiaries ~ ApexFf/B A 7 2 FEIERIE RS 27,673 27,673
Revenue WA 51,139 53,830
Interest income and other income R B U A R E AU A 27,238 28,672
Expenses sz (87,209) (91,799)
Loss for the year AEFEEEE (8.832) (9,297)
REBBREZHEEZRERAA
2022 4R 1 73
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE - - —F+_-_A=+—HIFE

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF  36.

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that

AABEEMMEBRBFE @

BREXNFEREZZHEZEN

have material non-controlling interests (CONTINUED) BARz#FE®
Apex and its subsidiaries (CONTINUED) Apex R E /& 2 7] (1)
2022 2021
—E- - —4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET
Loss attributable to owners of the RAREE AELERE
Company (5,151) (5,422)
Loss attributable to non-controlling ApexZ FEFEIR I & (G 85 18
interests of Apex - =
Loss attributable to non-controlling ApexHi B A E) 2 IEENE R RS
interests of Apex's subsidiaries B8 (3,681) (3,875)
Loss for the year REZEE (8,832) (9,297)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) RATEE ANEEEMEE
attributable to owners of the Company Iz, () 4,827 5,081
Other comprehensive income/(expense) ApexZ JEVERR ez FEAL H M 2 TH
attributable to non-controlling interests Wz (%)
of Apex 574 604
Other comprehensive income/(expense) ApexHi B A F) 2 JEE AR FE(E
attributable to non-controlling interests Hizmilss (Fx)
of Apex’s subsidiaries 629 662
Other comprehensive income/(expense) NEEEMEENE(FA%)
for the year 6,030 6,347
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - -~ +_-_A=+—HItFE

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 36. KA TRIFEMB A FFHE @)
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that BEEARFERERZFEZEM
have material non-controlling interests (CONTINUED) BARz#FE®
Apex and its subsidiaries (CONTINUED) Apex R B R1E 2 & (18)
2022 2021
B - —4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET
Total comprehensive expense attributable AAREE ANEEE2ERZ 25
to owners of the Company 225 237
Total comprehensive expense attributable ApexZ FE1ERR 1 # FE (G 2 52
to non-controlling interests of Apex k) 24 25
Total comprehensive expense attributable to ApexHi B R E] 2 FEENE R FE(E
non-controlling interests of Apex’s >EMAZBE
subsidiaries (3,051) (3,212)
Total comprehensive expense for the year REERHAS BT (2,802) (2,950)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating RS 2RSS RA Gt
activities FEE (7,601) (8,001)
Net cash inflow from investing activities KREEEZBERAFE 147 155
Net cash outflow from financing activities BhEEB) 2 R & FRE (425) (447)
Net cash outflow e FEE (7,879) (8,293)
REERZNEEZERERAE
2022 4R 175
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37. EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 7 June 2023, a winding up petition (the “Petition”) was presented
against the Company in respect of certain alleged indebtedness owed
to A. Plus Financial Press Limited. The Petition has been listed to be
heard before the High Court of The Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region at 9:30 a.m. on 16 August 2023.

The debt has been settled on 15 June 2023 and the Petition will be
withdrawn. The Petition would not affect the daily operation of the
Company. Please refer to the announcement dated 20 June 2023 for

details.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ - - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 38. AAQA B Z B &R R K & #

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY &
2022 2021
—E- 8 —E-—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets REBEE
Property, plant and equipment W~ MR R - =
Right-of-use assets FREEE 426 569
Investment in a subsidiary R—FEM B AR ZIE - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFEUR BT/ A R FRIAE 1,858,909 2,079,897
1,859,335 2,080,466
Current assets REEE
Other receivables and prepayments HoAth FE U BR SR BT IR 1,212 1,536
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE L B JBB 1 B R IE - =
Bank balances and cash RITEBR RS 80 149
1,292 1,685
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R HMFERIRFR 10,558 7,749
Interest-bearing borrowing TEEE 22,000 22,000
Lease liabilities HEa’E 320 611
Amounts due to subsidiaries LN/ 481,329 480,478
514,207 510,838
Net current liabilities RBAEEFEE (512,915) (509,153)
Total assets less current liabilities EEABRREBAEE 1,346,420 1,571,313
REBBENEZRERAF

2022F %,
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RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) 6
2022 2021
—E-C—F T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHAT
Non-current liability FEREBEE
Lease liabilities HEAaE 176 -
NET ASSETS EEFHE 1,346,244 1,571,313
Capital and reserves EARR G
Share capital &N 7,892 7,892
Reserves EE 1,338,352 1,563,421
TOTAL EQUITY AR 1,346,244 1,571,313
Movement of reserves REEE
Share-based
Special payments Accumulated
reserve reserve losses Total
BEREE URKRERE RitEE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL FAEL FHET FAL
At 1 January 2021 RZZ=Z—F—A—H 2,019,055 7,038 (448,230) 1,577,863
Loss and total comprehensive expense for AEEBEREEMX B
the year - - (14,442) (14,442)
Lapse of share option FERRIE AL - (1,242) 1,242 -
At 31 December 2021 R-B-_-F+=-A=+-8 2,019,055 5,796 (461,430) 1,563,421
Loss and total comprehensive expense for AEEBERZERT B
the year - - (225,069) (225,069)
Lapse of share option BRI - (5,796) 5,796 -
At 31 December 2022 R-B-_—_F+=-A=+—H 2,019,055 - (680,703) 1,338,352
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Financial Summary
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RESULTS fiE
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1t—-RALHEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—Bo-fF T —T-FTFE —T-hF —T)N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx FAET FET FAT FET
Revenue PN 53,241 79,067 67,156 215,376 263,011
Loss before tax B RTE 1B (30,985) (38,248) (83,439) (109,498) (65,765)
Income tax credit (expense)  FTSHE % (FIsZ) 5,553 (22) 9 (1,398) 66,188
(Loss) profit for the year REE(EE) & (25,432) (38,270) (83,430)  (110,896) 423
(Loss) profit for the year THATEEARFEE
attributable to: (BE)RF
Owners of the Company AAREAA (23,455) (33,410) (71,648) (95,435) (3,785)
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR MRS (1,977) (4,860) (11,782) (15,461) 4,208
(25,432) (38,270) (83,430) (110,896) 423
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEAE
At 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E-ofF —FoF —T-TF —T-hEF —TNF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T FHT FHET FHT
Total assets EEHAE 1,925,372 2,072,460 2,123,005 2,291,370 2,391,042
Total liabilities =Nitoto] 66,463 108,998 107,197 193,378 176,111
1,858,909 1,963,462 2,015,808 2,097,992 2,214,931
Equity attributable to KATEBA
owners of the Company  FE{G#EH 1,684,632 1,787,259 1,833,004 1,923,472 2,024,328
Non-controlling interests  JEiZpR s 174,277 176,203 182,804 174,520 190,603
1,858,909 1,963,462 2,015,808 2,097,992 2,214,931
EEZZNEZERERAR

2022F %,
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Particulars of Properties

e S

HOTEL PROPERTIES BIEY)ZE
Company Address Existing Use Site Area Gross Area % Interest
AT 3k REAR AR E R HEE EzEok
Rosedale Hotel Rosedale Hotel & Suites, Hotel operation 10,838.88 46,865.83 72.70%
Guangzhou Co., Ltd. Guangzhou sg.m. sg.m.
No. 348
Jiang Nan Da Road Central,
Haizhu District,
Guangzhou, the PRC
BMNEBEEARAT BEMNABEE REEIEER 10,838.88 46,865.83 72.70%
H BB T TR TR
yisBo N
TTRIRBH 34857
Rosedale Hotel Shenyang Rosedale Hotel Shenyang Hotel operation 5,335.00 43,000.34 84.90%
Company Limited No. 99 North Station Road, sg.m. sg.m.
Shenhe District,
Shenyang City,
Liaoning Province,
the PRC
ESIBBEBRAT ERHEBEE KR T TS 5,335.00 43,000.34 84.90%
BEEA
e nil
& [
1L 9955
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REW=
Company Address Existing Use Lease Term
AT 3k BEFAR FEH
The Rosedale Luxury No. 1900 Tianshan Road, Leased out Leasehold with a term expiring on
Hotel & Suites Ltd.* Changning District, 15 October 2023

Shanghai, the PRC

EEX(LEB)ARAH R EET bzl
KLU #& 190058

X For identification purpose only
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